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March 25, 2021 

Mr. John P. Henrie, Regional Director 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 

Atlanta Regional Office 

10 Tenth Street, NE, Suite 800 

Atlanta, GA 30309-3906 

Dear Mr. Henrie, 

In compliance with the annual reporting requirements of Part 363 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
Improvement Act, UB Bancorp (the "Company") , the parent bank holding company of Union Bank (the "Bank") is 
providing the enclosed audited comparative financial statements for the periods and years ended December 31, 2020 
and December 31, 2019. These audited financial statements include a report from Dixon Hughes Goodman, LLP, our 
independent public accountants. 

The management of the Company is responsible for preparing its annual financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and 
procedures for financial reporting , including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in 
accordance with the instructions for the Call Report; and for complying with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining 
to insider loans and the Federal and , if applicable, State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions. 

The management of UB Bancorp and Union Bank have assessed our compliance with the Federal laws and regulations 
pertaining to insider loans and the Federal and, if applicable, State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend 
restrictions during the fiscal year that ended on December 31 , 2020. Based upon its assessment, management has 
concluded that the Company and the Bank complied with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans 
and the Federal and, if applicable, State laws and regu lations pertaining to dividend restrictions during the fiscal year 
that ended on December 31, 2020. 

Vincent R. Jones 
President & Chief Ex~ ~r 

&2:v{,WL 
Sc t C. McLean 

: Financial Officer 

CC: 

Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond 
North Carolina Commissioner of Banks 

(252) 317-2832 • Fax (252) 215-0008 • 1011 Red Banks Road • Greenvill e, NC 27858 
is)' Member 

~ FDIC 
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Annual Report

UB Bancorp is not an SEC registrant, however the 
Company does prepare an annual report for its shareholders.
As specified by the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond,
a PDF. version  of our annual report is included with this filing.
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors 
UB Bancorp 
Greenville, NC 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of UB Bancorp (the “Company”), which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of Union Bank as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

 
Greenville, NC 
March 29, 2021 
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UB Bancorp 
Consolidated Balance Sheets  
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

 

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 11,459,844        $ 9,358,899          
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 5,376,937          4,312,158          
Federal funds sold 7,383,395          6,675,143          
Certificates of deposits with banks 5,145,000          5,880,000          
Investment securities available-for-sale 249,971,531     164,039,845     

Loans 660,962,633     576,739,113     
Allowance for loan losses (10,112,742)      (4,987,599)         

NET LOANS 650,849,891     571,751,514     

Accrued interest receivable 2,941,479          1,981,902          
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,715,800          2,668,400          
Bank premises and equipment, net 12,463,547        16,328,815        
Right-of-use operating lease asset 2,459,248          2,489,857          
Bank-owned life insurance 17,350,227        16,896,845        
Other real estate owned 117,500             -                      
Goodwill 12,896,999        12,896,999        
Core deposit intangible 694,405             1,243,316          
Other assets 5,545,511          4,797,642          

TOTAL ASSETS $ 987,371,314     $ 821,321,335     

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:
Deposits $ 753,448,411     $ 678,190,236     
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank, short term 38,500,000        25,000,000        
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank, long term 8,000,000          22,000,000        
Subordinated debt 30,633,368        6,000,000          
Other borrowings 57,522,579        -                      
Right-of-use operating lease liability 2,459,248          2,489,857          
Accrued interest payable 527,108             703,594             
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,287,700          1,492,706          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 893,378,413     735,876,393     

Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized;

none issued and outstanding -                      -                      
Common stock, no par value, 24,000,000 shares authorized;

5,987,782 and 5,950,533 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 71,087,685        70,928,399        

Retained earnings 17,502,508        13,623,095        
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5,402,707          893,448             

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 93,992,900        85,444,942        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 987,371,314     $ 821,321,335     

2020 2019
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UB Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Operations  
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

 

INTEREST INCOME
Loans $ 30,833,043        $ 29,497,135        
Investment securities 4,122,938          3,791,601          
Dividends from Federal Home Loan Bank stock 140,342             156,266             
Federal funds sold 27,797                127,612             
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 182,901             546,108             

TOTAL INTEREST INCOME 35,307,021        34,118,722        

INTEREST EXPENSE
Money market, demand, and savings deposits 614,695             1,150,071          
Time deposits 2,834,238          4,532,181          
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 797,118             919,928             
Subordinated debt 1,118,727          360,000             
Other borrowings 146,815             -                      

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 5,511,593          6,962,180          

NET INTEREST INCOME 29,795,428        27,156,542        

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 5,290,690          940,409             

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 24,504,738        26,216,133        

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges and fees on deposit accounts 861,636             963,384             
Fees from presold mortgages 855,270             416,761             
Debit card interchange fees 785,779             719,856             
Income from bank owned life insurance 453,382             446,881             
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities available-for-sale 255,530             490,917             
Other 386,917             278,369             

TOTAL NONINTEREST INCOME 3,598,514          3,316,168          

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits 14,248,822        13,275,020        
Occupancy and equipment 2,125,662          2,233,910          
Data processing 1,837,752          1,632,342          
Marketing 145,691             172,516             
Other 3,618,490          3,282,466          

TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSES 21,976,417        20,596,254        

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 6,126,835          8,936,047          

INCOME TAXES 1,071,234          1,777,000          

NET INCOME $ 5,055,601          $ 7,159,047          

2020 2019
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UB Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income  
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

Net Income $ 5,055,601          $ 7,159,047          

Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized gains/(losses) on available-for-sale securities

arising during the year 6,223,726          3,358,238          
Taxes related to unrealized (gains)/losses (1,431,458)         (772,395)            
Unrealized (losses) on cash flow hedges

arising during the year (109,178)            -                      
Taxes related to unrealized losses 22,927                -                      

4,706,017          2,585,843          

Reclassification to realized (gains)/losses (255,530)            (490,917)            
Tax related to realized gains/(losses) 58,772                112,911             

(196,758)            (378,006)            

Total 4,509,259          2,207,837          

Total Comprehensive Income $ 9,564,861          $ 9,366,884          

2020 2019
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UB Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity  
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

 

Shares
Balance at December 31, 2018 5,998,618        $ 71,878,505      $ 7,629,278        $ (1,314,389)       $ 78,193,394      
Net income -                         -                         7,159,047        -                         7,159,047        
Other comprehensive income -                         -                         -                         2,207,837        2,207,837        
Stock compensation expense, net -                         312,848           -                         -                         312,848           
Restricted stock awarded, net of forfeitures 36,744              -                         -                         -                         -                         
Common stock repurchased (84,829)            (1,262,954)       -                         -                         (1,262,954)       
Cash dividends paid per common share -                         -                         (1,165,230)       -                         (1,165,230)       

Balance at December 31, 2019 5,950,533        $ 70,928,399      $ 13,623,095      $ 893,448           $ 85,444,942      

Net income -                         -                         5,055,601        -                         5,055,601        
Other comprehensive income -                         -                         -                         4,509,259        4,509,259        
Stock compensation expense, net -                         387,133           -                         -                         387,133           
Restricted stock awarded, net of forfeitures 48,000              -                         -                         -                         -                         
Stock options exercises 10,822              73,750              -                         -                         73,750              
Common stock repurchased (21,573)            (301,597)          -                         -                         (301,597)          
Cash dividends paid per common share -                         -                         (1,176,188)       -                         (1,176,188)       

Balance at December 31, 2020 5,987,782        $ 71,087,685      $ 17,502,508      $ 5,402,707        $ 93,992,900      

Stockholders'
Equity

Accumulated
Other Total

Common Stock
Amount Income (Loss)

ComprehensiveRetained
Earnings
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UB Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 5,055,601        $ 7,159,047        

Adjustments to reconcile net income to 
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,412,484        1,589,314        
Amortization of core deposit intangible 548,911           707,633           
Amortization of acquisition premium on time deposits 8,981                15,328             
Provision for loan losses 5,290,690        940,409           
Accretion on acquired loans (866,289)          (1,114,897)      
Deferred income taxes (1,214,957)      (118,248)          
Net (gain) loss on sale of investment securities (255,530)          (490,917)          
Net (gain) loss on sale of real estate owned -                    67,354             
Net (gain) loss on bank premises and equipment (293,358)          2,784                
Stock compensation expense 387,133           312,848           
Income from bank owned life insurance (453,382)          (446,881)          
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable (959,577)          120,977           
Decrease (increase) in other assets (882,670)          (931,271)          
Decrease in right-of-use asset 30,310             299,860           
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable (176,486)          191,724           
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 685,816           182,929           
(Decrease) in right-of-use liability (30,310)            (299,860)          

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9,287,367        8,188,133        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
    Net change in certificates of deposit with banks 735,000           (1,225,000)      

Net redemption (purchases) of Federal Home Loan Bank stock (47,400)            (676,100)          
Purchase of investment securities available-for-sale (158,384,167)  (87,671,641)    
Maturities and prepayments of investment securities

available-for-sale 47,747,443     34,612,008     
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale 29,412,376     40,318,567     
Net increase in loans (84,065,611)    (66,995,376)    
Proceeds from sales of bank premises and equipment 3,609,458        -                    
Proceeds from sale of loans 425,333           -                    
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned -                    259,296           
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (324,313)          (492,504)          

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (160,891,881)  (81,870,750)    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 157,725,000   66,500,000     
Repayments to the Federal Home Loan Bank (158,225,000)  (51,500,000)    
Advances from the Federal Reserve 65,118,000     -                    
Repayments to the Federal Reserve (7,595,421)      -                    
Proceeds from subordinated debt, net of cost 24,610,752     -                    
Net increase in deposits 75,249,194     51,004,241     
Issuance of common stock 73,750             -                    
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (301,597)          (1,262,954)      
Cash dividends paid (1,176,188)      (1,165,229)      

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 155,478,490   63,576,058     

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,873,976        (10,106,559)    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 20,346,200     30,452,759     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $ 24,220,176     $ 20,346,200     

2020 2019
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UB Bancorp 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 (Continued) 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 5,688,079          $ 6,770,456          

Income taxes paid $ 2,057,000          $ 1,062,299          

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH 
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

Unrealized holding gains / (losses) on 
     available-for-sale securities and
     derivatives, net $ 4,509,259          $ 2,207,838          

Non Cash addition of Lease Asset & Liability
Right-of-use asset acquired through 

recognition of lease liability $ (306,834)            $ (2,789,717)         

Transfer from Loans to Other Real Estate Owned $ 117,500             $ -                      

2020 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Organization and Operations 

UB Bancorp (the “Company”), the bank holding company of Union Bank was formed on May 1, 2020.  Union Bank 
(the “Bank”), formerly known as the little bank, Inc., was originally incorporated as a North Carolina chartered 
savings bank on September 16, 1998 and began operations on November 9, 1998.  On July 7, 2017, the little 
bank, Inc. acquired Union Banc Corp. (“UBC”), a North Carolina-based holding company with a single wholly-
owned banking subsidiary, Union Bank & Trust Company. the little bank, Inc. was both the legal and accounting 
acquirer.  Effective with the merger, the little bank, Inc. changed its name to Union Bank, established its 
headquarters in Greenville, North Carolina, and became a North Carolina chartered commercial bank.  The merger 
expanded the Bank’s North Carolina presence, adding eight branches located in Oxford, Youngsville, Henderson, 
Louisburg, Roxboro, Cary, Raleigh and Creedmoor.  Union Bank has as its principal market area Craven, Franklin, 
Granville, Lenoir, New Hanover, Onslow, Person, Pitt, Vance, Wake and Wayne Counties.  The Bank is engaged 
in general commercial and retail banking in Central and Eastern North Carolina and operates under the banking 
laws of North Carolina and the rules and regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the North 
Carolina Banking Commission.  The Bank undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities.  UB 
Bancorp operates under the rules and regulation of the Federal Reserve.    

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of UB Bancorp and its wholly-owned bank subsidiary, 
Union Bank.  Significant intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in the consolidation process. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to 
the determination of the allowance for losses on loans, other real estate owned and goodwill. 

Business Combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 805, “Business Combinations.” 
Under the acquisition method, the acquiring entity in a business combination recognizes all of the acquired assets 
and assumed liabilities at their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition.  Any excess of the purchase price 
over the fair value of net assets and other identifiable intangible assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.  To the 
extent the fair value of net assets acquired, including identified intangible assets, exceeds the purchase price, a 
bargain purchase gain is recognized. 

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed from contingencies must also be recognized at fair value if the fair value 
can be determined during the measurement period.  Results of operations of an acquired business are included in 
the statement of earnings from the date of acquisition.  Acquisition-related costs, including conversion and 
restructuring charges, are expensed as incurred. 

The acquired assets and assumed liabilities are recorded at estimated fair values.  Management makes significant 
estimates and exercises significant judgment in accounting for business combinations.  Management judgmentally 
assigns risk ratings to loans based on credit quality, appraisals and estimated collateral values, and estimated 
expected cash flows to measure fair values for loans.  Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is valued based 
upon pending sales contracts and appraised values, adjusted for current market conditions.  Core deposit 
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intangibles are valued based on a weighted combination of the income and market approach where the income 
approach converts anticipated economic benefits to a present value and the market approach evaluates the market 
in which the asset is traded to find an indication of prices from actual transactions.  Management uses quoted or 
current market prices to determine the fair value of investment securities.  Fair values of deposits and borrowings 
are based on current market interest rates and are inclusive of any applicable prepayment penalties. 

Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold. 

Certificates of Deposit with Banks 

Certificates of deposit with banks currently have original maturities ranging from August 2021 through November 
2024 and bear interest at rates ranging from 1.55% to 3.55%.  None of the certificates of deposits had maturities of 
three months or less at the time of origination. 

Investment Securities 

Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value and consist of bonds and notes not classified as trading 
securities nor as held-to-maturity securities.  Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities 
are reported net of income taxes in accumulated other comprehensive income.  Gains and losses on the sale of 
available-for-sale securities are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific-identification method. 
Declines in the fair value of individual available-for-sale securities below their cost that are other-than-temporary 
would result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value.  The full amount of the write down is 
recognized in earnings if the holder is unable to assert that they do not intend to sell the security prior to recovery 
and that it is more likely than not the holder will not be required to sell the impaired security prior to recovery.  
Otherwise, the credit loss portion of the impairment is recognized in earnings and the remaining impairment is 
recognized in other comprehensive income.  Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the 
interest method over the period to maturity. 

Loans – Originated 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity are reported at 
their outstanding principal balance adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred 
fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans.  Loan origination 
fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment to the yield over the lives 
of the related loans.  

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information or events; it is probable that a borrower will be 
unable to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  For loans determined to 
be impaired, the allowance is based on discounted cash flows using the loan’s initial effective interest rate or the 
fair value of the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans. When the ultimate collectability of the impaired 
loan’s principal is doubtful, all cash receipts are applied to principal. Once the recorded principal balance has been 
reduced to zero, future cash receipts are first recorded as recoveries of any amounts previously charged-off and 
are then applied to interest income, to the extent that any interest has been foregone. 

Loans, including impaired loans, are generally classified as nonaccrual if they are past due as to maturity or payment 
of principal or interest for a period of more than 90 days, unless such loans are well-secured and in the process of 
collection.  Loans that are current or past due less than 90 days may also be classified as nonaccrual if repayment 
in full of principal and/or interest is in doubt (as determined by the contractual terms of the note).  Loans may be 
returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due (including arrearages) are 
reasonably assured of repayment within an acceptable period of time, and there is a sustained period of repayment 
performance (generally a minimum of six months) by the borrower, in accordance with the contractual terms. 

While a loan (including an impaired loan) is classified as nonaccrual and the future collectability of the recorded 
loan balance is doubtful, collections of interest and principal are generally applied as a reduction to the principal 
outstanding.  When the future collectability of the recorded loan balance is not in doubt, interest income may be 
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recognized on a cash basis.  In the case where a nonaccrual loan had been partially charged-off, recognition of 
interest on a cash basis is limited to that which would have been recognized on the recorded loan balance at the 
contractual interest rate.  Receipts in excess of that amount are recorded as recoveries to the allowance for loan 
losses until prior charge-offs have been fully recovered. 

Loans are deemed uncollectible at the discretion of the Chief Credit Officer, based on a variety of credit, collateral, 
documentation and other issues.  In the case where a loan is unsecured and in default it is fully charged off. 

Paycheck Protection Program Loans 

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”) include and created the Paycheck 
Protection Program (“PPP”) which is administered by the Small Business Administration (“SBA”).  The PPP section 
of the CARES Act was created to provide certain businesses with funding to support their operations during the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  In order to take part in the PPP, the participating business entity had to meet certain eligibility 
requirements.  Under the PPP, eligible businesses could apply to an SBA-approved lender for a loan that did not 
require any collateral or personal guarantees.  These loans have a 1% fixed rate of interest and a term of two years 
if issued prior to June 5, 2020, (unless otherwise modified) and a term of five years if issued after June 5, 2020.  
However, these loans are eligible for forgiveness (in whole or in part, including accrued interest) under certain 
conditions.  For loans that are forgiven, the lender collects the forgiven amounts from the SBA.   

The Company has actively worked to support its customers during this pandemic, including as a participant in the 
PPP.  During 2020, Union Bank originated a total of 912 PPP loans with $65.1 million of total funding.  As of 
December 31, 2020, the Company had 818 PPP loans with net balances of $55.9 million included in its total loans 
outstanding.   

Loans - Acquired 

Acquired loans are segregated between those considered to be performing (“acquired performing”) and those with 
evidence of credit deterioration based on such factors as past due status, nonaccrual status and credit risk ratings. 

In determining the acquisition date fair value of purchased credit-impaired (“PCI”) loans, and in subsequent 
accounting, the Company generally aggregates purchased loans into pools of loans with common risk 
characteristics within the following loan categories: 1-to-4 family residential loans other than junior liens, 1-to-4 
family residential junior liens, construction and land development, farmland, commercial real estate (nonowner-
occupied), commercial real estate (owner-occupied), commercial and industrial, and all other loan categories.  
Expected cash flows at the acquisition date in excess of the fair value of loans are referred to as the “accretable 
yield” and recorded as interest income over the life of the loans using a level yield method if the timing and amount 
of the future cash flows of the pool is reasonably estimable.  Subsequent to the acquisition date, significant 
increases in cash flows over those expected at the acquisition date are recognized as interest income prospectively.  
Accordingly, such loans are not classified as nonaccrual and they are considered to be accruing because their 
interest income relates to the accretable yield recognized under accounting for PCI loans and not to contractual 
interest payments.  The difference between the contractually required payments and the cash flows expected to be 
collected at acquisition, considering the impact of prepayments, is referred to as the nonaccretable difference. 

The difference between the fair value of an acquired performing loan pool and the contractual amounts due at the 
acquisition date (the “fair value discount”) is accreted into income over the estimated life of the pool.  The Bank’s 
policy for determining when to continue accruing interest on acquired performing loans and the subsequent 
accounting for such loans is essentially the same as the policy for originated loans described earlier. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses is the result of management’s review of probable credit losses inherent in the loan 
portfolio, including loans originated by the Bank as well as acquired loans, at the balance sheet date.  Provisions 
for loan losses are based upon management’s estimate of the amount needed to maintain the allowance for loan 
losses at an adequate level.  In making the evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, 
management considers current and anticipated economic conditions, statutory examinations of the loan portfolio by 
regulatory agencies, delinquency information and management’s internal review of the loan portfolio.  During 2020 
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management added a factor to the qualitative component of its allowance for loan losses calculation for 
uncertainties stemming from the economic impacts of the pandemic caused by the Covid-19 virus.  As a result, the 
Company had an unallocated amount of $961,000 included in its allowance for loan losses at year-end 2020.   

As of December 31, 2020, the Company’s total portfolio included 818 PPP loans with net outstanding balances of 
$55.9 million.  Under this program, these loans receive a 100% guarantee through the SBA and as such, the 
allowance for loan losses associated with these PPP loans is zero. 

Loans are considered impaired when it is probable that amounts due will not be collected in accordance with the 
contractual terms of the loan.  The measurement of impaired loans is generally based on the present value of 
expected future cash flows discounted at the historical effective interest rate, or upon the fair value of the collateral 
if the loan is collateral dependent.  If the recorded investment in the loan exceeds the measure of fair value, a 
valuation allowance is established as a component of the allowance for loan losses.  While management uses the 
best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if conditions 
differ substantially from the assumptions previously used in making the evaluations.   

In addition, regulatory examiners may require the Bank to recognize changes to the allowance for loan losses based 
on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination.  Historical loss calculations 
are based on a twelve-quarter rolling average loss ratio calculation with the most recent year’s loss history included 
in the model.  The impact is to more quickly recognize and increase the loss history for the loan portfolio. 

Decreases in expected cash flows of PCI loans with an accompanying decrease in the present value of the expected 
cash flows after the acquisition date are recognized by recording an allowance for credit loss.  In pools where 
impairment has already been recognized, an increase in present values will result in a reversal of prior impairment. 
Management analyzes these acquired loan pools using various assessments of risk to determine and calculate an 
expected loss.  The expected loss is derived using an estimate of a loss given default based upon the collateral 
type and/or specific review by loan officers.  Trends are reviewed in terms of traditional credit metrics such as 
accrual status, past due status, and weighted average risk grade of the loans within each of the accounting pools. 
In addition, the relationship between the change in the unpaid principal balance and change in the fair value mark 
is assessed to correlate the directional consistency of the expected loss for each pool. 

Bank Premises and Equipment 

Land is carried at cost.  Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation 
is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are thirty or forty years 
for buildings and three to ten years for furniture and equipment.  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the 
terms of the respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.  Repairs and 
maintenance costs are charged to operations as incurred, and additions and improvements to premises and 
equipment are capitalized.  Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the accounts and any gains or losses are reflected in current operations. 

Leases 

UB Bancorp leases certain office facilities and office equipment under operating leases.  In 2019, UB Bancorp 
adopted certain accounting standard updates related to accounting for leases as discussed below.  Under the new 
standards, for operating leases other than those considered to be short-term, UB Bancorp recognizes right-of-use 
operating lease assets and related lease liabilities which are reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the 
Company.  UB Bancorp does not recognize short-term operating leases in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  A 
lease is considered short-term if it has an original term of twelve months or less and does not have a purchase 
option that is likely to be exercised.   

In recognizing right-of-use operating lease assets and their related liabilities, UB Bancorp has elected the practical 
expedient that allows for lease and non-lease components (such as taxes, insurance, and common area 
maintenance costs) to be accounted for as a single lease component.  Lease payments over the expected term are 
discounted using UB Bancorp’s incremental borrowing rate referenced to the Federal Home Loan Bank advance 
rates for borrowings of similar term.  Management also considers renewal and termination options in the 
determination of the expected term of each lease.  If it is reasonably certain that a renewal or termination option will 
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be exercised, the effects of such options are included in the determination of the expected lease term.  Most leases 
include one or more renewal options.  At December 31, 2020, leases for facilities have terms, including renewal 
options that management is reasonably certain will be exercised, that range from 1 year to 31 years.  UB Bancorp 
leases do not contain material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants. 

Other Real Estate Owned 

Real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure is initially recorded at fair value, less estimated selling 
costs, at the date of foreclosure establishing a new cost basis.  After foreclosure, valuations of the property are 
periodically performed by management and the real estate is carried at fair value minus estimated cost to sell the 
property.  Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are charged to 
operations.  Improvements to the properties are capitalized. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 

As a requirement for membership, the Bank invests in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLB”). 
This investment is carried at cost.  Due to the redemption provisions of the FHLB, the Bank estimated that fair value 
equals cost and that this investment was not impaired. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the cost in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired (including identifiable intangibles) in 
transactions accounted for as business combinations.  Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is evaluated for 
impairment annually, or more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.  An 
impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.  The 
Company concluded that goodwill was not impaired as of December 31, 2020; however, further events impacting 
financial institutions could negatively impact the goodwill asset. 

Core Deposit Intangible 

In connection with its business combination the Company recorded a core deposit intangible, which it considers 
having a finite life.  The core deposit intangible represents the value of the acquired core deposit base and is 
amortized using the effective interest method over their expected life.  The estimated future amortization of the core 
deposit intangible is subject to change based on management’s review of its carrying value or estimated useful life, 
which is evaluated no less than on an annual basis. 

Income Taxes 

Income tax expense is based on net income and generally differs from income taxes paid due to deferred income 
taxes and benefits arising from income and expenses being recognized in different periods for financial and income 
tax reporting.  The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for deferred income taxes.  The objective 
of the asset and liability method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for the temporary differences 
between the financial reporting basis and the income tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities at enacted 
rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are recovered or settled. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to 
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which 
the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation 
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 

Uncertainty in income taxes is accounted for in accordance with the Income Taxes topic of the FASB ASC, which 
clarifies the accounting for the recognition and measurement of the benefits of individual tax positions in the 
consolidated financial statements.  Tax positions must meet a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-not in order 
for the benefit of those tax positions to be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.  The 
Company has determined that it does not have any material unrecognized tax benefits or obligations as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019.  Interest and penalties related to income tax assessments, if any, are reflected in 
income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.   
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Stock Compensation Plans 

The Company recognizes the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments 
in the consolidated financial statements over the period the employee is required to perform the services in 
exchange for the award (presumptively the vesting period).  The Company measures the cost of employee services 
received in exchange for an award based on the grant-date fair value of the award.  The excess tax benefits are 
reported as financing cash inflows, rather than as a reduction of taxes paid, which is included within operating cash 
flows.  

Stock Repurchase Plan 

In December of 2020, the Board announced their approval to repurchase up to 1.5% of the Company’s outstanding 
shares. Under the provisions of previously approved stock repurchase programs, during 2019 the Bank repurchased 
a total of 84,829 shares at a cost of $1.3 million, during the first quarter of 2020 the Bank repurchased 21,573 
shares at a cost of $302,000. 

Earnings Per Common Share 

Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares 
of common stock outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per common share reflect additional common 
shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any 
adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance.  Potential common shares that may be issued 
by the Company relate to stock options and restricted stock.  Diluted earnings per common share is computed by 
dividing net income by the weighted average number of common stock equivalents and other potentially dilutive 
securities using the treasury stock method. 

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share is presented below: 

Basic Earnings per Common Share

Net Income $ 5,055,601          $ 7,159,047          

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 5,967,643          5,982,776          

Basic earnings per common share $ 0.85                    $ 1.20                    

2020 2019

 

Diluted Earnings per Common Share

Net Income $ 5,055,601          $ 7,159,047          

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 5,967,643          5,982,776          
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock 21,616                38,266                

Weighted-average common shares outstanding
adjusted for the effect of dilutive securities 5,989,259          6,021,042          

Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.84                    $ 1.19                    

2020 2019

 
 
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were 77,864 and 89,521 options outstanding, respectively.  Of these options, 
at December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were 32,751 and 21,325 options outstanding, respectively, which were 
antidilutive since the exercise price exceeds the average market price for the year.  These options have been 
omitted from the calculations of the dilutive effect of stock options.  
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Derivatives 

The Company’s interest rate risk management strategy incorporates the use of derivative financial instruments.  
Specifically, the Company has entered into an interest rate swap in an effort to manage future interest rate exposure.  
The hedging strategy converts a LIBOR-based variable interest rate borrowing to a fixed interest rate and is used 
in an effort to protect UB Bancorp from floating interest rate variability.   This strategy is referred to as a cash flow 
hedge.  For derivatives designated as hedging exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction (cash 
flow hedge), the derivative's entire gain or loss is initially reported as a component of other comprehensive income 
and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings or when the hedge is 
terminated.  For derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments, changes in the fair value of the 
derivatives are recognized in earnings immediately. 

By using derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to credit and market risk.  If the counterparty fails to 
perform, credit risk is equal to the fair value gain in a derivative.  When the fair value of a derivative contract is 
positive, this situation generally indicates that the counterparty is obligated to pay the Company, and, therefore, 
creates a repayment risk for the Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company is 
obligated to pay the counterparty and, therefore, has no repayment risk.  The Company minimizes the credit risk in 
derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties. 

The Company’s derivative activities are monitored by its Asset-Liability Management Committee as part of that 
committee's oversight of the Company's asset/liability and treasury functions.  The Company's Asset-Liability 
Management Committee is responsible for monitoring hedging strategies that are developed through analysis of 
data from financial simulation models as well as other reporting provided by management, including report on the 
effectiveness of hedged transactions. 

The Company recognizes the fair value of derivatives as assets or liabilities in the financial statements.  The 
accounting for the changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative instrument 
at inception.  The change in fair value of the effective portion of cash flow hedges is accounted for in other 
comprehensive income rather than net income.  Changes in fair value of derivative instruments that are not intended 
as a hedge are accounted for in the net income in the period of the change.  See Note 10 - Derivative Instruments 
for additional information. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications of 2019 balances have been made to conform to classifications used in 2020.  These 
reclassifications had no effect on stockholders’ equity or previously reported net income. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company generally acts in a principal capacity, on its own behalf, in its contracts with customers.  In these 
transactions, revenues are recognized with related costs to generate those revenues on a gross basis.  Descriptions 
of noninterest revenue-generating activities are as follows. 

Service Charges on Deposit Accounts - Service charges on personal and business demand deposit accounts 
consist of insufficient funds fees, monthly service fees, check orders, and other deposit account related fees. The 
Company's performance obligations include maintaining customer’s deposit account(s), executing transactions, 
providing interest per the terms of the various account agreements, and making funds available upon maturity or at 
customer demand. For all revenue streams, transaction prices are disclosed with a single performance obligation 
applicable to each transaction.  The Company has determined the service fees are recognized at a point in time 
and monthly service fees are earned over the statement period. 

Other Fees and Income - Other fees and income primarily consist of debit and credit card income, automated teller 
machines (“ATM”) fees, merchant services income, and other service charges. Debit and credit card income 
primarily consists of interchange fees earned whenever the Company's debit and credit cards are processed 
through card payment networks such as Visa. ATM fees are primarily generated when a Company cardholder uses 
a non-Company ATM or a non-Company cardholder uses a Company ATM. Merchant service income mainly 
represents fees charged to merchants to process their debit and credit card transactions, in addition to account 
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management fees. Other service charges include revenue from processing wire transfers, bill pay service, cashier's 
checks, and other services. The Company's performance obligation for fees, exchange, and other service charges 
are largely satisfied, and related revenue recognized, when the services are rendered or upon completion. Payment 
is typically received immediately or in the following month. Other fees and income also include other recurring 
revenue streams such as safety deposit rental fees and other miscellaneous revenue streams. Safe deposit boxes 
rental fees are charged to the customer on an annual basis and recognized upon receipt of payment. The Company 
determined that since rentals and renewals occur consistent over time, revenue is recognized on a basis consistent 
with the duration of the performance obligation. 

Sale of Foreclosed Real Estate - Income derived from contractual sales of Foreclosed Real Estate primarily consist 
of revenues derived from the exchange of the foreclosed asset for consideration. The Company’s performance 
obligation is to provide access and transfer control of the specified properties to the buyer.  Transaction prices are 
agreed upon purchase prices as stated within contracts.  The transaction price is allocated entirely to the 
performance obligation, which is satisfied at a point in time upon the date of sale. 

Comprehensive Income 

The Company reports as comprehensive income all changes in stockholders' equity during the year from sources 
other than stockholders. Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to all components (revenues, expenses, gains, 
and losses) of comprehensive income that are excluded from net income.  UB Bancorp has two components of 
other comprehensive income (loss), unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available-for-sale and 
unrealized gains and losses on cash flow hedges, net of income taxes. 

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements  

In January of 2020, the Company adopted Leases: Codification Improvements (ASU 2019-01).  This ASU provides 
clarification to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and 
liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing essential information about leasing transactions.  Specifically, ASU 
2019-01 (i) allows the fair value of the underlying asset reported by lessors that are not manufactures or dealers to 
continue to be its cost and not fair value as measured under the fair value definition, (ii) allows for the cash flows 
received from sales-type and direct financing leases to continue to be presented as results from investing, and (iii) 
clarifies that entities do not have to disclose the effect of the lease standard on adoption year interim amounts.  The 
adoption of ASU 2019-01 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements  

The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that could impact the accounting, reporting, 
and/or disclosure of financial information by the Company. 

In October 2019, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) approved a delay for the implementation of 
ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326).  The FASB decided that the Current Expected 
Credit Loss (“CECL”) methodology will be effective for larger Public Business Entities ("PBEs") that are SEC filers, 
excluding Smaller Reporting Companies ("SRCs") as currently defined by the SEC, for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years.  For calendar-year-end companies, this will be 
January 1, 2020. The determination of whether an entity is an SRC will be based on an entity’s most recent 
assessment in accordance with SEC regulations and the Company meets the regulations as an SRC. 

For all other entities, the FASB decided that CECL will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years.  For all entities, early adoption will continue to be permitted; 
that is, early adoption is allowed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within 
those fiscal years (that is, effective January 1, 2019, for calendar-year-end companies).  The Company does not 
plan to adopt this standard early and will adopt when required for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022.  
The Company has engaged a third-party consultant to assist with the implementation of this standard, including 
reviewing methodologies, validation, and key aspects of this accounting change. While the Company expects its 
financial statements to be impacted by adoption of ASU No. 2016-13, specifically our reserve for credit losses, the 
extent of the potential impact continues to be under evaluation. 
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In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for 
Income Taxes. The amendments in this update simplify various aspects of the current guidance to promote 
consistent application of the standard among reporting entities by moving certain exceptions to the general 
principles. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption 
permitted. The adoption of this standard is not anticipated to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements.  

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of 
Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, which provides temporary optional guidance to ease the potential 
burden in accounting for reference rate reform. The ASU provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying 
generally accepted accounting principles to contract modifications and hedging relationships, subject to meeting 
certain criteria, that reference London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). It is intended to help stakeholders during 
the global market-wide reference rate transition period. The guidance is effective for all entities as of March 12, 
2020 through December 31, 2022. The Company is implementing a transition plan to identify and modify its loans 
and other financial instruments, including certain indebtedness, with attributes that are either directly or indirectly 
influenced by LIBOR.  The Company is assessing ASU 2020-04 and its impact on the transition away from LIBOR 
for its loan and other financial instruments. 

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

Accounting and Reporting Considerations Related to Covid-19 

The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy. In response to this crisis, the CARES Act 
was passed by Congress and signed into law on March 27, 2020. The CARES Act provides an estimated $2.2 
trillion to fight the COVID-19 pandemic and stimulate the economy by supporting individuals and businesses through 
loans, grants, tax changes, and other types of relief. Some of the provisions applicable to the Company include, but 
are not limited to: 

● Accounting for Loan Modifications – Section 4013 of the CARES Act provides that a financial institution may elect 
to suspend (1) the requirements under GAAP for certain loan modifications that would otherwise be categorized as 
a troubled debt restructure (“TDR”) and (2) any determination that such loan modifications would be considered a 
TDR, including the related impairment for accounting purposes.  

● Paycheck Protection Program - The CARES Act established the Paycheck Protection Program, an expansion of 
the Small Business Administration’s 7(a) loan program and the Economic Injury Disaster Loan Program (“EIDL”), 
administered directly by the SBA.  The Company is a participant in the PPP.   

● Mortgage Forbearance - Under the CARES Act, through the earlier of December 31, 2020, or the termination 
date of the COVID-19 national emergency, a borrower with a federally backed mortgage loan that is experiencing 
financial hardship due to COVID-19 may request a forbearance.  A multifamily borrower with a federally backed 
multifamily mortgage loan that was current as of February 1, 2020, and is experiencing financial hardship due to 
COVID-19 may request forbearance on the loan for up to 30 days, with up to two additional 30-day periods at the 
borrower’s request. 

Also in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“FRB”), the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), the National Credit Union Administration (“NCUA”), the Office of 
the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”), and the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”), in consultation 
with the state financial regulators (collectively, the “agencies”) issued a joint interagency statement (issued March 
22, 2020; revised statement issued April 7, 2020).  Some of the provisions applicable to the Company include, but 
are not limited to:  

● Accounting for Loan Modifications – Loan modifications that do not meet the conditions of the CARES Act may 
still qualify as a modification that does not need to be accounted for as a TDR.  The agencies confirmed with the 
FASB staff that short-term modifications made on a good faith basis in response to COVID-19 to borrowers who 
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were current prior to any relief are not TDRs.  This includes short-term (e.g., six months) modifications such as 
payment deferrals, fee waivers, extension of repayment terms, or insignificant delays in payments.   

● Past Due Reporting – With regards to loans not otherwise reportable as past due, financial institutions are not 
expected to designate loans with deferrals granted due to COVID-19 as past due because of a deferral.  A loan’s 
payment date is governed by the due date as stipulated in the legal agreement.  If a financial institution agrees to 
a payment deferral, these loans would not be considered past due during the period of deferral.   

● Nonaccrual Status and Charge-offs – During short-term COVID-19 modifications, these loans generally should 
not be reported as nonaccrual or as classified. 

The Company began offering short-term loan modifications to assist borrowers during the COVID-19 national 
emergency.  The Company offered the following deferral options of: 1) three months of full payment deferrals or, 2) 
six months of interest only payments.  These modifications generally meet the criteria of both Section 4013 of the 
CARES Act and the joint interagency statement, and therefore, the Company does not account for such loan 
modifications as TDRs.  On August 3, 2020, the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council on behalf of its 
members (collectively “the FFIEC members”) issued a joint statement on additional loan accommodations related 
to COVID-19.  The joint statement clarifies that for loan modifications in which Section 4013 is being applied, 
subsequent modifications could also be eligible under Section 4013.  To be eligible, each loan modification must 
be (1) related to the COVID event; (2) executed on a loan that was not more than 30 days past due as of December 
31, 2019; and (3) executed between March 1, 2020, and the earlier of (A) 60 days after the date of termination of 
the National Emergency or (B) December 31, 2020.  All of the Company’s loan modifications granted under Section 
4013 of the CARES Act are in compliance with the aforementioned FFIEC requirements.  Accordingly, the Company 
does not account for such loan modifications as TDRs.  As of December 31, 2020, the Company had COVID-19 
related modifications on 22 loans with outstanding balances of $7.9 million.   

Subsequent Events 

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through March 29, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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3. Investment Securities 

The following is a summary of the securities portfolios by major classification: 

Securities available-for-sale
U.S. agency securities $ 6,643,249        $ 110,378           $ (47,496)            $ 6,706,131        
Mortgage-backed securities

Government-sponsored enterprises ("GSE") 122,792,439   3,183,177        (117,129)          125,858,487   
Municipal bonds 107,354,668   3,978,743        (51,293)            111,282,118   
Corporate bonds 6,052,657        72,138             -                    6,124,795        

Total $ 242,843,013   $ 7,344,436        $ (215,918)          $ 249,971,531   

Securities available-for-sale
U.S. agency securities $ 18,413,559     $ 54,605             $ (72,835)            $ 18,395,329     
Mortgage-backed securities

Government-sponsored enterprises ("GSE") 97,014,579     845,108           (451,056)          97,408,631     
Municipal bonds 46,451,385     1,091,795        (310,005)          47,233,175     
Corporate bonds 1,000,000        2,710                -                    1,002,710        

Total $ 162,879,523   $ 1,994,218        $ (833,896)          $ 164,039,845   

Gains Losses ValueCost

December 31, 2020
Gross

Unrealized
Gross

UnrealizedAmortized              Fair

December 31, 2019

Cost Gains Losses Value

Gross Gross
Amortized              Unrealized Unrealized Fair

 
 

The Bank realized $286,000 of gross gains and $31,000 of gross losses in its earnings from the sale of available-
for-sale securities in 2020.  During 2019 there were gross realized gains of $527,000 and $36,000 of gross realized 
losses included in earnings from the sale of available-for-sale securities.  There were no unrealized gains or losses 
included in earnings during 2020 or 2019. 

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2020 by contractual maturity are 
shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to 
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Securities available-for-sale
Due within one year $ 1,429,590          $ 1,432,917          
Due after one year through five years 4,860,883          4,935,389          
Due after five years through ten years 78,186,505        80,606,151        
Due after ten years 158,366,035     162,997,074     

Total $ 242,843,013     $ 249,971,531     

December 31, 2020

Cost Value
FairAmortized

 

For the purposes of the maturity table, mortgage-backed securities, which are not due at a single maturity date, 
have been allocated over maturity groupings based on the weighted-average contractual maturities of underlying 
collateral. The mortgage-backed securities may mature earlier than their weighted-average contractual maturities 
because of principal payments. 
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Securities with a carrying value of $38.6 million at December 31, 2020 were pledged as collateral on public deposits. 

The following tables show gross unrealized losses and fair values of investment securities, aggregated by 
investment category and length of time that the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss 
position at December 31, 2020 and 2019. All of the unrealized losses on the Bank’s debt securities are due to higher 
market interest rates since the securities were initially purchased. The unrealized losses are not likely to reverse 
unless and until market interest rates decline to the levels that existed when the securities were purchased. Since 
none of the unrealized losses relate to the marketability of the securities or the issuer’s ability to honor redemption 
obligations, and considering that management has the intent and ability to hold these investments until recovery, 
none of the securities are deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired. Should the Bank decide in the future to 
sell securities in an unrealized loss position or determine that impairment of any securities is other-than-temporary, 
irrespective of a decision to sell, an impairment loss would be recognized in the period such determination is made.  
As of December 31, 2020, and 2019 there were 31 and 84 securities, respectively, in a loss position. 

 

Securities available-for-sale
U.S. agency securities $ -              $ -              $ 2,353          $ 47                $ 2,353          $ 47                
Mortgage-backed securities

GSE 13,683        117             -              -              13,683        117             
Municipal bonds 7,964          51                -              -              7,964          51                

Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 21,647        $ 168             $ 2,353          $ 47                $ 24,000        $ 215             

Securities available-for-sale
U.S. agency securities $ -              $ -              $ 9,804          $ 73                $ 9,804          $ 73                
Mortgage-backed securities

GSE 29,933        387             10,441        64                40,374        451             
Municipal  bonds 14,038        310             -              -              14,038        310             

Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 43,971        $ 697             $ 20,245        $ 137             $ 64,216        $ 834             

(Dollars in Thousands)
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

December 31, 2019
Less Than 12 Months

Value Losses Value Losses

12 Months or More Total

(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 2020
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Value Losses
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

UnrealizedFair Unreal ized Fair Unrealized Fair
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4. Loans 

Following is a summary of loans at December 31: 

Residential real estate $ 150,455,482     $ 156,099,968     
Commercial real estate 259,531,340     240,834,541     
Construction and land development 103,382,261     89,051,272        
Commercial and industrial 107,718,236     47,496,298        
Farmland and agriculture 10,316,014        13,163,165        
Home equity loans 25,752,357        25,837,910        
Consumer loans 3,806,943          4,255,959          
Subtotal 660,962,633     576,739,113     

Allowance for loan losses (10,112,742)      (4,987,599)         

Total $ 650,849,891     $ 571,751,514     

2020 2019

 
 
The loans presented above are net of deferred loan fees of $2,319,000 and $707,000 at December 31, 2020 and 
2019, respectively.  Included in commercial and industrial loans are PPP loans with a net balance of $55.9 million 
at December 31, 2020. 

The Bank has granted loans to certain directors and executive officers and their related interests. Such loans are 
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable transactions with other borrowers and, in management’s opinion, do not involve more than the normal 
risk of collectability. All loans to directors and executive officers or their interests are submitted to the Board of 
Directors for approval. A summary of loans to directors, executive officers and their related interests follows: 

Beginning balance $ 2,317,441          $ 614,263             
Disbursements during the year 924,444             3,604,434          
Collections during the year (1,643,152)         (1,901,256)         

Ending balance $ 1,598,734          $ 2,317,441          

2020 2019

 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Bank had pre-approved but unused lines of credit totaling $2.4 million to executive 
officers, directors and their related interests. During the year ended December 31, 2020, directors with loans totaling 
$257,892.73 left the Company. This is reflected in collections during the year. 

Loans are primarily made in Central and Eastern North Carolina, principally Craven, Franklin, Granville, Lenoir, 
New Hanover, Onslow, Person, Pitt, Vance, Wake and Wayne Counties. Real estate loans can be affected by the 
condition of the local real estate market. Loans can be further affected by the local economic conditions. 
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The following describe the risk characteristics relevant to each of the portfolio segments. 

Commercial and residential real estate 
Commercial and residential real estate secured loans are subject to underwriting similar to real estate construction 
loans. These loans are either cash flow loans or development loans paid from the sale of the underlying real 
estate.  Commercial real estate lending typically involves higher risk and higher loan principal amounts and the 
repayment of these loans is generally largely dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the 
loan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan. Commercial real estate loans may be more 
adversely affected by conditions in real estate markets or the general economy. The properties securing the Bank’s 
commercial real estate portfolio are principally secured by owner-occupied buildings including professional 
practices, office and church properties and single-family rental properties. Management monitors and evaluates 
commercial real estate loans based on collateral, market area and risk grade criteria. Residential real estate 
properties are typically secured by the primary residence of the borrower and the combined loan-to-value ratio is 
usually 90% or less. 

Construction and land development 
Commercial and residential construction and land development loans are underwritten utilizing independent 
appraisal or evaluations, sensitivity analysis of absorption and financial analysis of the developers and property 
owners.  Construction loans are generally based upon estimates of costs and value associated with the project as 
completed. These estimates may be imprecise in some situations. Construction loans often involve the 
disbursement of funds with the repayment substantially dependent on the success of the ultimate project. Sources 
of repayment for these types of loans may be pre-committed permanent loans, sales of developed property or an 
interim loan commitment from the Bank until permanent financing is obtained. These loans are closely monitored 
by on-site inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate loans due to their ultimate 
repayment being sensitive to interest rate changes, general economic conditions, availability of long-term financing 
and government regulation of real property. 

Commercial and industrial 
Non-real estate secured commercial and industrial loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the 
borrowers’ ability to operate profitably and prudently expand its business. Underwriting standards are designed to 
promote relationship banking rather than transactional banking. Management examines current and projected cash 
flows of the borrower to determine the ability of the borrower to repay its obligations as agreed. Commercial and 
industrial loans are primarily made based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the 
underlying collateral provided by the borrower and tertiary, as applicable, the guarantors. The cash flows of 
borrowers, however, may not materialize as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. 
Most commercial and industrial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other business assets such as 
accounts receivable, inventory or equipment and usually incorporate a personal guaranty.  Included in this segment 
of the portfolio are the PPP loans originated by the Company.   

Farmland and agricultural 
Farm and agricultural lending consists primarily of crop loans and some land loans. Management examines current 
and projected cash flows of the borrower to determine the ability of the borrower to repay its obligations as agreed.  
Farm and agricultural loans are primarily made based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily 
on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower and tertiarily, as applicable, the guarantors. Generally, the 
Bank underwrites crop loans on a single crop season in order to minimize risk of unforeseen losses in the collateral 
due to acts of nature. 

Consumer 
Consumer loans primarily consist of home equity lines of credit.  Home equity lines of credit are primarily 
underwritten based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided 
by the borrower. The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not materialize as expected and the collateral securing 
these loans may fluctuate in value.  The combined loan value on these loans generally does not exceed 90%. 

The Bank maintains an independent loan review function that reviews and validates our credit risk portfolio on a 
periodic basis. Results of these reviews are presented to management and the Board of Directors. The loan review 
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process complements and reinforces the risk identification and assessment decisions made by bankers and credit 
personnel, as well as the Bank’s policies and procedures. 

Paycheck Protection Program 
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”) include and created the Paycheck 
Protection Program (“PPP”) which is administered by the Small Business Administration (“SBA”).  The PPP section 
of the CARES Act was created to provide certain businesses with funding to support their operations during the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  In order to take part in the PPP, the participating business entity had to meet certain eligibility 
requirements.  Under the PPP, eligible small businesses could apply to an SBA-approved lender for a loan that 
does not require collateral or personal guarantees.  The loans have a 1.0% fixed rate of interest.  Loans issued 
prior to June 5, 2020, are due within two years unless otherwise modified and loans issued after June 5, 2020, 
could have a term of five years.  However, they are eligible for forgiveness (in whole or in part, including any accrued 
interest) under certain conditions.  For PPP loans that receive forgiveness, the lender collects the forgiven amounts 
from the SBA. 

The Company has been an active participant in assisting our customers and communities in response to the impacts 
of the COVID-19 pandemic.  This participation has included both assisting customer in both securing funding as 
well as forgiveness for PPP loans.   

Nonperforming assets and potential problem loans 
Due to economic and legal reasons related to the deterioration of an individual borrower’s financial condition, the 
Bank may grant concessions on a loan-by-loan basis. In situations where a borrower’s financial condition has 
deteriorated but they continue to be creditworthy customers who have a willingness and capacity to repay their 
debts, the Bank may find it mutually beneficial to work constructively with borrowers in order to protect the Bank’s 
investment as much as possible. The Bank may offer a variety of troubled debt restructuring programs including, 
but not limited to, a modification of the loan terms such as a reduction of the contractual interest rate, principal, 
payment amount or accrued interest; an extension of the maturity date at a stated interest rate lower than the current 
market rate for a new debt with similar risk; and a change in payment type, e.g. from principal and interest to interest 
only with all principal and interest due at maturity.   

On a loan-by-loan basis, the Bank restructures loans that were either on nonaccrual basis prior to restructuring or 
on accrual basis prior to restructuring. If a loan was on nonaccrual basis prior to restructuring, it remains on 
nonaccrual basis until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability to meet the terms and conditions of 
the restructuring and to make the restructured loan payments, generally for a period of at least six months.  The 
Bank has not immediately placed any restructured loan on accrual status that was on nonaccrual status prior to 
restructuring. 

If a restructured loan was on accrual basis prior to restructuring and the Bank expects the borrower to perform to 
the terms and conditions of the loan after restructuring, the loan remains on an accrual basis and placement on 
nonaccrual is not required. 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Bank had one troubled debt restructured loan (“TDR”), which was 
modified in September of 2019 with a pre and post-modified outstanding recorded investment of $284,747 and 
$292,318, respectively. There were no loans modified as a TDR in 2020. Troubled debt restructured loans are 
included within impaired loans. The Bank is not committed to advance additional funds on restructured loans.  There 
were no TDRs originated during 2020 or 2019 which have subsequently reported an event of default. 

Determining the fair value of PCI loans at acquisition required the Bank to estimate cash flows expected to result 
from those loans and to discount those cash flows at appropriate rates of interest. For such loans, the excess of 
cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition over the estimated fair value is recognized as interest income 
over the remaining lives of the loans is called the accretable yield. The difference between contractually required 
payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition reflects the impact of estimated 
credit losses and is called the nonaccretable difference. In accordance with GAAP, there was no carry-over of 
previously established allowance for loan losses from the acquired company. 
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For PCI loans acquired from Union Bank & Trust Company, changes to the accretable yield were as follows for the 
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019: 
 

2020 2019

Accretable yield, beginning balance $ 754                     $ 793                     
Additions -                      -                      
Accretion (442)                    (408)                    
Reclassification of nonaccretable difference (101)                    484                     
Other changes, net 303                     (115)                    

Accretable yield, end of period $ 514                     $ 754                     

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
COVID-19 related loan modifications 
On March 22, 2020, the federal banking agencies issued an “Interagency Statement on Loan Modifications and 
Reporting for Financial Institutions Working with Customers Affected by the Coronavirus.”  This guidance 
encouraged financial institutions to work prudently with its borrowers that may be unable to meet their contractional 
loan obligations due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.  This guidance included an explanation, in 
consultation with the Financial Accounting Standards Board staff, that the federal banking agencies concluded that 
short-term modifications (e.g., six months or less) made in good faith to borrowers who were current as of the 
implementation date of a relief program are not considered TDRs.  In addition, on March 27, 2020, President Trump 
signed the CARES Act.  The CARES Act also addressed COVID-19 related modifications and specified that COVID-
19 related modifications on loans that were current as of December 31, 2019, are not TDRs. 

The Company began offering short-term loan modifications to assist borrowers during the COVID-19 national 
emergency.  The Company offered the following deferral options of: 1) three months of full payment deferrals or, 2) 
six months of interest only payments.  These modifications generally meet the criteria of both Section 4013 of the 
CARES Act and the joint interagency statement, and therefore, the Company does not account for such loan 
modifications as TDRs.  On August 3, 2020, the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council on behalf of its 
members (collectively “the FFIEC members”) issued a joint statement on additional loan accommodations related 
to COVID-19.  The joint statement clarifies that for loan modifications in which Section 4013 is being applied, 
subsequent modifications could also be eligible under Section 4013.  To be eligible, each loan modification must 
be (1) related to the COVID event; (2) executed on a loan that was not more than 30 days past due as of December 
31, 2019; and (3) executed between March 1, 2020, and the earlier of (A) 60 days after the date of termination of 
the National Emergency or (B) December 31, 2020.  All of the Company’s loan modifications granted under Section 
4013 of the CARES Act are in compliance with the aforementioned FFIEC requirements.  Accordingly, the Company 
does not account for such loan modifications as TDRs.  During the course of 2020, the Company granted 
modifications on 347 loans with total balances of approximately $92.0 million.  As of December 31, 2020, the 
Company had COVID-19 related modifications on 22 loans with outstanding balances of $7.9 million.   
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The ending balances of loans and the related allowance presented by portfolio class and allowance methodology as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are presented below.  
Included in the commercial and industrial loan category at year-end 2020 are $55.9 million of net PPP loans which have no related allowance due to their 100% guarantee 
through the SBA. 
 

Allowance for credit losses:
Beginning balance $ 1,266,643      $ 2,077,410      $ 916,502              $ 441,668         $ 113,323         $ 128,924         $ 43,129            $ 4,987,599      

Charge-offs -                  -                  (123,496)             (92,567)          -                  (3,264)             (25,444)          (244,770)        
Recoveries 1,238              -                  640                      26,021            -                  48,264            3,060              79,222            
Provisions (Recovery) 575,036         953,885         600,330              3,043,900      6,797              82,073            28,670            5,290,691      

Ending balance $ 1,842,917      $ 3,031,295      $ 1,393,976           $ 3,419,022      $ 120,120         $ 255,996         $ 49,416            $ 10,112,742    

Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment $ -                  $ -                  $ -                       $ 1,970,509      $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 1,970,509      

Ending balance: purchased
credit impaired loans 22,097            5,594              -                       -                  -                  -                  -                  27,691            

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment $ 1,820,820      $ 3,025,701      $ 1,393,976           $ 1,448,513      $ 120,120         $ 255,996         $ 49,416            $ 8,114,542      

Financing Receivables:
Ending balance $ 150,455,482 $ 259,531,340 $ 103,382,261      $ 107,718,236 $ 10,316,014    $ 25,752,357    $ 3,806,943      $ 660,962,633 

Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment 136,031         -                  -                       3,214,119      -                  -                  -                  3,350,150      

Ending balance: purchased
credit impaired loans 772,756         359,637         -                       -                  -                  -                  -                  1,132,393      

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment $ 149,546,695 $ 259,171,703 $ 103,382,261      $ 104,504,117 $ 10,316,014    $ 25,752,357    $ 3,806,943      $ 656,480,090 

December 31, 2020

Residential        
Real Estate

Commercial      
Real Estate

Construction & 
Land Development

Commercial & 
Industrial

Farmland & 
Agriculture

Home Equity 
Loans TotalConsumer
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Allowance for credit losses:
Beginning balance $ 1,083,445      $ 1,583,827      $ 760,559              $ 306,449         $ 121,789         $ 149,022         $ 40,984            $ 4,046,075      

Charge-offs (25,547)          -                  (132,792)             (33,793)          -                  -                  (29,547)          (221,679)        
Recoveries 93,982            -                  120,533              1,937              -                  -                  6,341              222,793         
Provisions (Recovery) 114,763         493,583         168,202              167,075         (8,466)             (20,098)          25,351            940,410         

Ending balance $ 1,266,643      $ 2,077,410      $ 916,502              $ 441,668         $ 113,323         $ 128,924         $ 43,129            $ 4,987,599      

Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment $ -                  $ -                  $ -                       $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  

Ending balance: purchased
credit impaired loans 1,761              5,594              -                       3,225              -                  -                  -                  10,580            

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment $ 1,264,882      $ 2,071,816      $ 916,502              $ 438,443         $ 113,323         $ 128,924         $ 43,129            $ 4,977,019      

Financing Receivables:
Ending balance $ 156,099,968 $ 240,834,541 $ 89,051,272        $ 47,496,298    $ 13,163,165    $ 25,837,910    $ 4,255,959      $ 576,739,113 

Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment 257,770         -                  -                       292,318         57,180            -                  -                  607,268         

Ending balance: purchased
credit impaired loans 946,812         833,880         -                       28,094            70,293            -                  -                  1,879,079      

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment $ 154,895,386 $ 240,000,661 $ 89,051,272        $ 47,175,886    $ 13,035,692    $ 25,837,910    $ 4,255,959      $ 574,252,766 

December 31, 2019

Residential       
Real Estate

Commercial      
Real Estate

Construction & 
Land Development

Commercial & 
Industrial

Farmland & 
Agriculture

Home Equity 
Loans Consumer Total
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Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade 
 
Loans are monitored for credit quality on a monthly basis to monitor past due status and the composition of the loans outstanding at December 31 by credit quality indicator 
is provided below. The credit quality indicators used are dependent on the portfolio class to which the loan relates.  

Loan credit quality indicators for all loans within the portfolio are developed through review of individual borrowers on an ongoing basis. The indicators represent the rating 
for loans as of the date presented based on the most recent assessment performed. These credit quality indicators are defined below.  The loans in the table below include 
all purchased loans (PCI loans and performing loans).  Included in ungraded commercial and industrial loans are PPP loans with a net balance of $55.9 million at December 
31, 2020. 

Grade:
Excellent $ -                    $ -                    $ -                     $ 2,683,930        $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,326,348        $ 4,010,278        
Good Quality 675,067           811,834           297,944            90,941             -                    437,777           137,977           2,451,540        
Satisfactory 35,865,686     64,738,430     12,072,763      4,302,112        1,776,923        8,483,552        417,611           127,657,077   
Low Satisfactory 112,018,259   187,264,508   90,981,297      40,085,215     7,407,536        16,752,980     1,617,206        456,127,001   
Special Mention 1,191,355        3,255,872        9,666                 477,577           444,634           -                    -                    5,379,104        
Substandard 420,937           315,847           -                     3,406,172        695,537           -                    -                    4,838,493        
Doubtful 10,831             -                    -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    10,831             
Loss -                    -                    -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Ungraded 488,257           3,484,647        245,948            58,201,558     -                    79,034             307,658           62,807,102     

Sub Total 150,670,392   259,871,138   103,607,618    109,247,505   10,324,630     25,753,343     3,806,800        663,281,426   

Deferred fees (cost) (214,909)          (339,798)          (225,358)           (1,529,270)      (8,615)              (986)                  143                   (2,318,793)      

Total $ 150,455,483   $ 259,531,340   $ 103,382,260    $ 107,718,235   $ 10,316,015     $ 25,752,357     $ 3,806,943        $ 660,962,633   

December 31, 2020

Residential        
Real Estate

Commercial      
Real Estate

Construction & 
Land Development

Commercial & 
Industrial

Farmland & 
Agriculture

Home Equity 
Loans Consumer Total
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Grade:
Excellent $ -                    $ -                    $ -                     $ 2,276,181        $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,372,426        $ 3,648,607        
Good Qual ity 938,101           24,762             1,137,394         534,381           -                    811,106           131,050           3,576,794        
Satisfactory 48,266,224     79,464,143     19,544,856      4,799,286        3,372,314        8,489,727        1,253,575        165,190,125   
Low Satisfactory 104,221,310   155,348,179   68,055,093      37,091,526     7,942,709        15,992,484     1,058,667        389,709,968   
Special Mention 1,714,280        4,319,041        163,115            849,146           1,039,096        264,030           4,024                8,352,732        
Substandard 374,461           342,061           -                     160,651           748,104           -                    -                    1,625,277        
Doubtful 37,743             -                    -                     -                    70,293             -                    -                    108,036           
Loss -                    478,233           -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    478,233           
Ungraded 739,811           1,227,500        281,379            1,792,296        -                    279,036           435,834           4,755,856        

Sub Total 156,291,930   241,203,919   89,181,837      47,503,466     13,172,516     25,836,383     4,255,577        577,445,628   

Deferred fees (cost) (191,962)          (369,378)          (130,565)           (7,168)              (9,351)              1,527                382                   (706,515)          

Total $ 156,099,968   $ 240,834,541   $ 89,051,272      $ 47,496,298     $ 13,163,165     $ 25,837,910     $ 4,255,959        $ 576,739,113   

December 31, 2019

Residential       
Real Estate

Commercial      
Real Estate

Construction & 
Land Development

Commercial & 
Industrial

Farmland & 
Agriculture Home Equity Loans Consumer Total
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Risk Grade Definitions 
 
Excellent Credit 
Credits in this category are virtually risk-free and are well-collateralized by cash-equivalent instruments. 
The repayment program is well-defined and achievable, repayment sources are numerous, and no material 
documentation deficiencies exist. 

Good Quality 
Credits in this category are to applicants that meet or exceed the Bank's guidelines, have a definite 
repayment agreement in effect, and are being repaid as agreed. A borrower in this category may have one 
or more of the following characteristics:  performance and financial condition compares favorably to industry 
standards and in accordance with loan covenants, proven cash flows that consistently cover the debt 
service requirements, industry conditions are more positive than negative, the borrower's position is strong 
relative to peers, and alternative funding sources are available.  

Satisfactory 
Credits in this category are to applicants who have four or fewer minor exceptions to the Bank's guidelines. 
No major exceptions are present. The credit is fundamentally sound, and risk factors are reasonable and 
acceptable. The financial condition of the borrower and/or guarantor(s) is satisfactory. The credits are in 
conformance with existing Credit Policy, have only minor deviation from established guidelines, and the loss 
potential is considered low. Other characteristics could include one or more of the following: cash flow and/or 
balance sheet liquidity provides repayment capacity, the current appraisal of collateral provides adequate 
margin for loan/lease extension, and there are no material documentation deficiencies. 

Low Satisfactory 
General characteristics are similar to a Satisfactory risk grade, except there may be a major exception to the 
guidelines that is clearly mitigated by other economic factors; or several minor exceptions are noted that are 
clearly mitigated by other economic factors. 

Special Mention 
Special mention loans include loans with one or more of the following characteristics: 

 Loans with one or more major exceptions with no mitigating factors.   

 Extending loans that are currently performing satisfactorily but with potential weaknesses that may, if 
not corrected, weaken the asset or inadequately protect the Bank's position at some future date.  

 Loans where the borrower's ability to repay from primary (intended) repayment sources is not clearly 
sufficient to ensure performance as contracted. However, the loan is performing as contracted, 
secondary repayment sources are clearly sufficient to protect against the risk of loss, and the Bank 
can reasonably expect that the circumstances causing the repayment concern will be resolved.  

 Access to alternate financing sources exists but may be limited to institutions specializing in higher 
risk financing.   

 Loans where adverse economic conditions that develop subsequent to the loan origination that don't 
jeopardize liquidation of the debt but do increase the level of risk.    

 Credits which have been formally criticized by a regulatory agency, internal bank loan review, or the 
lending officer operating under the current policy regarding risk grading.  

 Assets in this category are currently protected by primary and secondary repayment sources but are 
potentially weak. These assets constitute an undue and unwarranted credit risk, but not to the point 
of justifying a classification of Substandard.  
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Substandard 
A substandard loan is inadequately protected by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor 
or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans classified as substandard have a well-defined weakness or 
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt; they are characterized by the distinct possibility that 
the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.  

Doubtful 
Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified substandard, plus the 
added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full based on currently existing 
facts, conditions, and values highly questionable and improbable. However, these loans are not yet rated 
as loss because certain events may occur which would salvage the debt. 

Loss 
Loans classified as loss are considered uncollectable and of such little value that their continuance as 
bankable assets is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the asset has absolutely no recovery 
or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this potentially worthless loan 
even though partial recovery may be affected in the future. Loans may reside in this classification for 
administrative purposes for a period not to exceed the earlier of thirty (30) days or calendar quarter-end. 

Ungraded 
Credits in this category include amounts in the loan and appraisal fee work-in-process accounts, overdraft 
plan accounts, and PPP loans which are not risk graded. 
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Age Analysis of Past Due Financing Receivables 
The aging of the outstanding loans by class at December 31 is provided in the table below. The calculation of 
days past due begins on the day after payment is due and includes all days through which all required interest 
or principal have not been paid. Loans less than 30 days past due are considered current due to certain grace 
periods that allow borrowers to make payments within a stated period after the due date and still remain in 
compliance with the loan agreement. 

Total Loans
Residential real estate $ 8,593                $ -                    $ 349,739           $ 358,332           $ 150,097,150   $ 150,455,482   $ 109,687           
Commercial real estate 35,390             100,832           -                    136,222           259,395,118   259,531,340   -                    
Construction and land development 85,977             -                    -                    85,977             103,296,284   103,382,261   -                    
Commercial and industrial 58,834             -                    -                    58,834             107,659,402   107,718,236   -                    
Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    -                    -                    10,316,014     10,316,014     -                    
Home equity loans -                    -                    -                    -                    25,752,357     25,752,357     -                    
Consumer loans -                    -                    -                    -                    3,806,943        3,806,943        -                    

Total $ 188,794           $ 100,832           $ 349,739           $ 639,365           $ 660,323,268   $ 660,962,633   $ 109,687           

Loans - PCI
Residential real estate $ -                    $ -                    $ 240,052           $ 240,052           $ 532,704           $ 772,756           $ -                    
Commercial real estate -                    -                    -                    -                    359,637           359,637           -                    
Construction and land development -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Commercial and industrial -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Home equity loans -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Consumer loans -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total $ -                    $ -                    $ 240,052           $ 240,052           $ 892,341           $ 1,132,393        $ -                    

Loans - Excluding PCI
Residential real estate $ 8,593                $ -                    $ 109,687           $ 118,280           $ 149,564,446   $ 149,682,726   $ 109,687           
Commercial real estate 35,390             100,832           -                    136,222           259,035,481   259,171,703   -                    
Construction and land development 85,977             -                    -                    85,977             103,296,284   103,382,261   -                    
Commercial and industrial 58,834             -                    -                    58,834             107,659,402   107,718,236   -                    
Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    -                    -                    10,316,014     10,316,014     -                    
Home equity loans -                    -                    -                    -                    25,752,357     25,752,357     -                    
Consumer loans -                    -                    -                    -                    3,806,943        3,806,943        -                    

Total $ 188,794           $ 100,832           $ 109,687           $ 399,313           $ 659,430,927   $ 659,830,240   $ 109,687           

Total Loans

Recorded 
Investment > 90 

Days and Accruing

December 31, 2020

Current
30-59 Days        

Past Due
60-89 Days        

Past Due

Greater Than         
90 Days              

Past Due
Total                  

Past Due
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Total Loans
Residential real estate $ 327,579           $ 62,668             $ 228,113           $ 618,360           $ 155,481,608   $ 156,099,968   $ -                    
Commercial real estate 657,419           -                    478,233           1,135,652        239,698,889   240,834,541   -                    
Construction and land development -                    223,450           375,000           598,450           88,452,822     89,051,272     375,000           
Commercial and industrial 130,988           -                    -                    130,988           47,365,310     47,496,298     -                    
Farmland and agriculture 232,010           57,180             70,293             359,483           12,803,682     13,163,165     -                    
Home equity loans -                    134,315           -                    134,315           25,703,595     25,837,910     -                    
Consumer loans 19,761             -                    -                    19,761             4,236,198        4,255,959        -                    

Total $ 1,367,757        $ 477,613           $ 1,151,639        $ 2,997,009        $ 573,742,104   $ 576,739,113   $ 375,000           

Loans - PCI
Residential real estate $ 238,054           $ -                    $ 62,613             $ 300,667           $ 646,145           $ 946,812           $ -                    
Commercial real estate -                    -                    478,233           478,233           355,647           833,880           -                    
Construction and land development -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Commercial and industrial -                    -                    -                    -                    28,094             28,094             -                    
Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    70,293             70,293             -                    70,293             -                    
Home equity loans -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Consumer loans -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total $ 238,054           $ -                    $ 611,139           $ 849,193           $ 1,029,886        $ 1,879,079        $ -                    

Loans - Excluding PCI
Residential real estate $ 89,525             $ 62,668             $ 165,500           $ 317,693           $ 154,835,463   $ 155,153,156   $ -                    
Commercial real estate 657,419           -                    -                    657,419           239,343,242   240,000,661   -                    
Construction and land development -                    223,450           375,000           598,450           88,452,822     89,051,272     375,000           
Commercial and industrial 130,988           -                    -                    130,988           47,337,216     47,468,204     -                    
Farmland and agriculture 232,010           57,180             -                    289,190           12,803,682     13,092,872     -                    
Home equity loans -                    134,315           -                    134,315           25,703,595     25,837,910     -                    
Consumer loans 19,761             -                    -                    19,761             4,236,198        4,255,959        -                    

Total $ 1,129,703        $ 477,613           $ 540,500           $ 2,147,816        $ 572,712,218   $ 574,860,034   $ 375,000           

Recorded 
Investment > 90    

Days and Accruing
30-59 Days      

Past Due
60-89 Days      

Past Due

Greater Than         
90 Days            
Past Due

Total                  
Past Due Current Total Loans

December 31, 2019
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Impaired Loans 
The following table provides information on impaired loans, excluding PCI loans and loans evaluated as a 
homogenous group, at December 31, including interest income recognized in the period during which the 
loans and leases were considered impaired. The recorded investment balance includes the loan balance 
and deferred fees. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no impaired loans with an allowance 
recorded. 

With a related allowance recorded:

Residential real estate $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    

Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Commercial and Industrial 2,705,066        2,705,066        1,970,509        2,705,066        -                    

With no related allowance recorded:

Residential real estate $ 136,031           $ 136,764           $ -                    $ 138,106           $ -                    

Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Commercial and Industrial 509,053           509,744           -                    511,282           17,680             

Total:

Residential real estate $ 136,031           $ 136,764           $ -                    $ 138,106           $ -                    

Farmland and agriculture -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Commercial and Industrial 3,214,119        3,214,810        1,970,509        3,216,348        17,680             

Total $ 3,350,150        $ 3,351,574        $ 1,970,509        $ 3,354,454        $ 17,680             

With no related allowance recorded:

Residential real estate $ 257,770           $ 257,770           $ -                    $ 275,383           $ -                    

Farmland and agriculture 57,180             57,180             -                    57,180             -                    

Commercial  and Industrial 292,318           292,318           -                    292,318           -                    

Total:

Residential real estate $ 257,770           $ 257,770           $ -                    $ 275,383           $ -                    

Farmland and agriculture 57,180             57,180             -                    57,180             -                    

Commercial  and Industrial 292,318           292,318           -                    292,318           -                    

Total $ 607,268           $ 607,268           $ -                    $ 624,881           $ -                    

December 31, 2020
Recorded 

Investment Legal Balance
Related 

Allowance
Average Recorded 

Investment
Interest Income 

Recognized

Legal  Balance
Related 

Allowance
Average Recorded 

Investment
Interest Income 

Recognized

December 31, 2019
Recorded 

Investment
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Loans on Nonaccrual Status 
 
The recorded investment, by class, in loans on nonaccrual status at December 31 is as follows: 

2020 2019

Residential real estate $ 136,031             $ 257,770             
Farmland and agriculture -                      57,180                
Commercial and Industrial 2,926,702          -                      

Total $ 3,062,733          $ 314,950             

For the Year Ended December 31,

  

Non-accrual loans are all considered impaired.  The interest income that has not been recorded due to the 
loans being in nonaccrual status for 2020 and 2019 was $14,000 and $10,000, respectively. 

PCI loans are not classified as nonaccrual, they are considered to be accruing as their interest income 
relates to the accretable yield recognized under accounting for PCI loans and not to contractual interest 
payments.  

5. Bank Premises and Equipment 

Following is a summary of bank premises and equipment at December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

Land $ 3,550,089          $ 4,730,089          
Buildings 9,267,784          11,542,784        
Leasehold improvements 1,114,758          1,110,017          
Furniture and equipment 4,761,296          4,613,150          

Accumulated depreciation (6,230,380)         (5,667,225)         

Total $ 12,463,547        $ 16,328,815        

For the Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019

 
  
Depreciation amounting to $873,000 and $955,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, is included in occupancy and equipment expense.   
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6. Leases 

The Company has operating leases for some of its branch and operational facilities.  These leases have 
terms ranging from 1 year to 31 years, which included options to extend or terminate the lease agreement 
at the Company’s discretion.  These options to extend or terminate a lease arrangement are considered 
and included in the Company’s right-of-use (ROU) asset and liability when it is reasonably certain that the 
option will be exercised.  

The Company elected the modified retrospective approach and the practical expedients that allowed us to 
account for our lease arrangements primarily consistent with previous guidance.  We do not apply the 
recognition requirements of the new lease accounting standard to short-term leases (those not reasonably 
expected to be in place longer than 12 months from inception).  The rate implicit in the lease arrangements 
is not readily determined by the Company.  As a result, we utilize the FHLB borrowing rate at inception, for 
a similar term advance as the reasonably anticipated lease term (including any anticipated lease option 
exercises) to determine the present value of lease payments. 

Supplemental balance sheet information relating to the Company’s operating leases follows: 

2020 2019

Right-of-use operating lease asset $ 2,459,248          $ 2,489,857          
Right-of-use operating lease liability $ 2,459,248          $ 2,489,857          

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years) 16.94                  17.97                  
Weighted average discount rate 3.46% 3.66%

At December 31,

 

Summary of minimum future lease payments, by year and in aggregate, under operating leases with an 
initial or remaining term in excess of one year as of December 31, 2020 are as follows: 

Period Amount

2021 $ 416,611             
2022 356,675             
2023 310,864             
2024 213,481             
2025 180,231             
Thereafter 2,131,128          
Total undiscounted payments 3,608,990          
Less: imputed interest (1,149,742)         
Present value of lease payments
(ROU operating lease liability) $ 2,459,248          
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Summary of the minimum future rental payments under the leases described as of December 31, 2019 are 
as follows: 

Period Amount

2020 $ 396,382             
2021 297,149             
2022 279,203             
2023 233,392             
2024 192,057             
Thereafter 2,311,358          
Total undiscounted payments 3,709,541          
Less: imputed interest (1,219,684)         
Present value of lease payments
(ROU operating lease l iabi lity) $ 2,489,857          

 

Total operating lease expense was $425,000 and $451,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 
2019, respectively, which approximates cash payments made toward operating leases and is included in 
occupancy and equipment expense. 

The Bank leased a portion of the Cary branch building to a third party until this facility was sold in April of 
2020.  Rental income from this lease totaled $29,000 in 2020 and $99,000 in 2019.  

7. Intangibles 

The following is a summary of the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets 
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the carrying amount of intangible assets as of December 31, 2020 
and 2019. 

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Amortization

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Accumulated 
Amortization

Amortized intangible assets:
Core deposit intangibles 3,310,000$        2,615,595$        3,310,000$        2,066,684$        

Unamortized intangible assets:
Goodwill 12,896,999$     -$                    12,896,999$     -$                    

2020 2019

 
 
Amortization expense associated with intangibles amounted to $549,000 and $708,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
At December 31, 2020, the scheduled amortization expense for intangible assets is as follows: 
 

2021 390,190$           
2022 231,469             
2023 72,746                

Total 694,405$           
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8. Deposits 

Deposits consist of the following: 

Noninterest-bearing demand $ 306,953,634     $ 214,279,005     
Interest-bearing demand 94,221,437        77,011,824        
Savings and money market 189,974,815     146,693,148     
Time 162,298,525     240,206,259     

Total $ 753,448,411     $ 678,190,236     

2020 2019
For the Year Ended December 31,

 
 
The aggregate amount of time deposits, excluding brokered time deposits, in denominations that meet or 
exceed FDIC insurance limits of $250,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were $42.0 million and $45.8 
million, respectively. 

At December 31, 2020, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows: 

2021 $ 99,192,180        $ 38,191,138        $ 137,383,318     
2022 12,808,130        1,739,624          14,547,754        
2023 5,299,712          948,766             6,248,478          
2024 1,460,691          615,190             2,075,881          
2025 1,522,960          520,134             2,043,094          

Total $ 120,283,673     $ 42,014,852        $ 162,298,525     

Total$250,000 or More
Less than $250,000 

 

9. Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank and Other Borrowings 

The Bank has available a line of credit from the FHLB totaling $242.8 million, representing approximately 
25% of total assets. At December 31, 2020, advances under this line totaled $46.5 million, with interest 
rates ranging from 0.22% to 0.56%. At December 31, 2019, advances under this line totaled $47.0 million, 
with interest rates ranging from 1.61% to 2.94%. 

At December 31, 2020, the scheduled maturities of FHLB advances are as follows: 

Maturity Interest Rate
Short Term:

Fixed Rate 2021 0.22% to 0.36% $ 38,500,000        

Long Term:
Variable Rate 2022 0.54% to 0.56% 8,000,000          

Total FHLB Advances $ 46,500,000        

Amount

 

The FHLB advances are not callable by the FHLB. The Bank’s advances with the FHLB are secured by its 
qualifying first residential and commercial real estate loans with a lendable collateral value of $148.9 million 
at December 31, 2020. At December 31, 2020, the line of credit with the FHLB was not secured by any 
investment securities. 
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As of December 31, 2020, the Bank had an available line of credit at the Federal Reserve Bank of 
Richmond’s Discount Window of $36.2 million which was secured by approximately $52.3 million of loans 
pledged. The Bank also has three available lines of credit for $15.0 million, $12.0 million, and $10.0 million 
from its correspondent banks as of December 31, 2020. There were no outstanding balances with either 
the Federal Reserve Bank’s Discount Window or any of the correspondent banks as of December 31, 2020 
or 2019. In addition, the Bank utilized the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond’s Paycheck Protection 
Program Liquidity Facility (“PPPLF”) in 2020 and had outstanding advances totaling $57.5 million at 
December 31, 2020, which were 100% secured by PPP loans.  
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Company has issued an outstanding $31.0 million of subordinated debt, of 
which the carrying value has been reduced for issuance costs totaling $367 thousand, of these 
subordinated notes, $6.0 million were issued in May of 2018, have a ten year stated maturity, and are 
callable at the option of the Bank any time after their fifth anniversary date.  During the first five year period 
these notes pay a fixed annual interest rate of 6.0%.  During the last five years the notes will pay a variable 
rate of three-month LIBOR plus a spread of 350 basis points.  The interest on the notes is paid on a quarterly 
basis to the investors.  During 2020, the Company issued an additional $25.0 million of subordinated debt.  
These subordinated notes were issued in May 2020 and have a ten year stated maturity. During the first 
five year period, these notes pay a fixed annual interest rate of 5.0%, paid on a semi-annual basis to the 
investors. During the last five years, the notes will pay a variable rate of three-month SOFR plus a spread 
of 464 basis points, paid on a quarterly basis.  Of the subordinated debt outstanding as of December 31, 
2020, and 2019, $9.0 million and $6.0 million were held by related parties, respectively. 

10. Derivative Instruments 

Financial derivatives are reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at their fair value.  The 
accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative is dependent on whether the instrument has been 
designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship.  In March of 2020, UB Bancorp entered into a 
five-year, $10.0 million notional interest rate swap agreement in an effort to manage future interest rate 
exposure.  The hedging strategy converts a $10.0 million LIBOR-based variable interest rate borrowing to 
a fixed interest rate and is used in an effort to protect the Company from floating interest rate variability.  
The Company receives three-month LIBOR and pays a fixed rate of 60 basis points to its swap counterparty.  
This swap is designated as a cash flow hedge with its aggregate fair value recorded in either other assets 
or other liabilities, with any associated change in its gain or loss recorded in accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax.  As of December 31, 2020, the swap had a fair value loss position 
of $109,000 which was included in other liabilities and $86,000 included in accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) on the consolidated balance sheet.   

During the course of 2020, the cash flow hedge was considered to be highly effective and as a result 
qualified for hedge accounting treatment.  Should a hedge be deemed ineffective, the amount included in 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) would be reclassified into a line item within the 
consolidated statement of operations that impacts operating results.  The hedge would no longer be 
considered effective if a portion of the hedge becomes ineffective, the item hedged is no longer in existence, 
or if the Company discontinued hedge accounting.  UB Bancorp expects the hedge to continue to be highly 
effective and qualify for hedge accounting throughout the term of the swap.   

  



UB Bancorp 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

 

38 

11. Income Taxes 

The significant components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 
2019 are as follows: 

Current tax provision
Federal $ 1,992,249          $ 1,689,482          
State 293,939             205,766             

Total current tax provision 2,286,188          1,895,248          

Deferred tax expense / (benefit)
Federal (1,079,486)         (110,398)            
State (152,820)            (7,850)                 

Total deferred tax expense / (benefit) (1,232,306)         (118,248)            

Change in valuation allowance 17,352                -                      

Provision for income taxes $ 1,071,234          $ 1,777,000          

2020 2019

 

The Company’s effective tax rate for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2020, was 17.5%.  Our 
effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2019, was 19.9% 

Income tax expense is reconciled to the amount computed by applying the federal tax rate of 21% for the 
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, to income before income taxes as follows: 
 

Income tax expense
Expense computed at statutory rate $ 1,286,635          $ 1,876,570          
Effect of state income taxes 111,484             156,353             
Bank-owned life insurance (95,210)              (93,845)              
Tax exempt interest (265,402)            (163,062)            
Stock based compensation expense 19,162                (5,548)                 
Change in valuation allowance 17,352                -                      
Other, net (2,787)                 6,532                  

Income tax expense $ 1,071,234          $ 1,777,000          

2020 2019
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Significant components of deferred taxes at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 
 

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 2,323,403          $ 1,014,975          
Right-of-use liability-leases 565,012             572,044             
Net operating losses 1,265                  -                      
Restricted stock 51,948                41,875                
Non-qualified stock options 41,730                45,022                
Supplemental executive retirement plan 299,822             177,139             
Fair Value - Acquisition accounting 269,916             489,965             
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 22,927                -                      
Other 122,506             126,000             

Gross deferred tax assets 3,698,529          2,467,020          

Less: Valuation allowance (17,352)              -                      

Net deferred tax assets 3,681,177          2,467,020          

Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated depreciation premises and equipment (49,175)              (67,563)              
Prepaid expenses (18,871)              (17,175)              
Right-of-use asset-leases (565,012)            (572,044)            
Unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale (1,639,559)         (266,874)            

Total deferred tax liabilities (2,272,617)         (923,656)            

Net deferred tax asset $ 1,408,560          $ 1,543,364          

2020 2019

 
 
The Company measures deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates that will apply in the 
years in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or paid.  In assessing the realizability 
of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of 
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.  The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent 
upon the generation of future taxable income during periods in which those temporary differences become 
deductible.  Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future 
taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.  Based on the level of historical 
taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets 
are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of 
these deferred tax assets, net of the valuation allowance at December 31, 2020.  The Company has state 
net operating loss carryforwards of $64,027 for the year ended December 31, 2020.  A valuation allowance 
of $17,352 was established in 2020 to fully offset the holding company’s state deferred tax assets for which 
realizability is uncertain.  The change in the valuation allowance for the current year was $17,352. 

The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and concluded 
it has no liability related to uncertain tax positions.  The Company files federal and state income tax returns.  
With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to federal or state income tax examinations by tax 
authorities for years prior to 2017. 

  



UB Bancorp 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

 

40 

12. Regulatory Matters 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking 
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly 
additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve 
quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classifications are also subject to 
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

Capital guidelines also provide that all covered banking organizations must maintain a capital conservation 
buffer of common equity Tier 1 capital in an amount greater than 2.5% of total risk-weighted assets to avoid 
being subject to limitations on capital distributions and discretionary bonus payments to executive officers. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain 
minimum amounts and ratios, as prescribed by regulations, of Total and Tier I capital to risk-weighted 
assets and of Tier I capital to average assets (see table below).  As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, that 
the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. 

As of December 31, 2020, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well 
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  To be categorized as well 
capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum amounts and ratios, as set forth in the table below.  There 
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s 
category. 

A summary of the Bank’s actual capital components, those required for capital adequacy and those to be 
considered well capitalized under prompt corrective action provisions as of December 31, 2020, and 2019 
follows: 

 

Ratio Ratio Ratio

As of December 31, 2020:

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 97,830      14.62% $ 70,279        10.50% $ 66,933        10.00%

Tier 1 Capital ( to Risk-Weighted Assets) 83,442      12.47% 56,893        8.50% 53,546        8.00%

Common Equity (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 83,442      12.47% 46,853        7.00% 43,506        6.50%

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Quarterly Assets) $ 83,442      9.31% $ 35,860        4.00% $ 44,825        5.00%

As of December 31, 2019:

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 81,400      13.48% $ 63,419        10.50% $ 60,400        10.00%

Tier 1 Capital ( to Risk-Weighted Assets) 70,412      11.66% 51,339        8.50% 48,320        8.00%

Common Equity (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 70,412      11.66% 42,280        7.00% 39,260        6.50%

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Quarterly Assets) $ 70,412      8.91% $ 31,603        4.00% $ 39,504        5.00%

(Dollars in thousands)

Capitalized Under Prompt
Minimum to be Well

Capitalized Under Prompt

Amount
Actual Corrective Action Provisions

Amount
Corrective Action Provisions

Amount

Minimum to be Adequately
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13. Off-Balance Sheet Risk 

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business 
to meet the financing needs of its customers.  These financial instruments include commitments to extend 
credit and standby letters of credit.  Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and 
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.  The contract or notional amounts 
of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial 
instruments.  The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional 
obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 
conditions established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  Since some of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements.  The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.  The 
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company, upon extension of credit is based on 
management’s credit evaluation of the borrower.  Collateral obtained varies but may include real estate, 
stocks, bonds, and certificates of deposit. 

A summary of the contract amount of the Company’s exposure to off-balance sheet risk as of December 
31, 2020 is as follows: 

Financial Instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

Commitments to extend credit $ 11,470,187        
Undisbursed lines of credit 66,325,596        
Undisbursed construction loans 67,208,321        
Letters of Credit 1,141,597           

14. Concentrations of Credit 

All of the Company’s loans and commitments to extend credit and commercial and standby letters of credit 
have been granted to customers in the Company’s market area.  Substantially all such customers are 
depositors of the Company.  The Company, as a matter of policy, does not extend credit to any single 
borrower or group of related borrowers in excess of the regulatory loan-to-one-borrower limit. 

15. Disclosures About Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Current accounting requires disclosures about the fair value of all financial instruments whether or not 
recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate the value.  In cases where quoted 
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other techniques.  
Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and 
estimates of future cash flows.  In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by 
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized through immediate 
settlement of the instrument. 

The fair value of a financial instrument is an amount at which the asset or obligation could be exchanged 
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale.  Fair values are estimated at a 
specific point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments.  
Because no market value exists for a significant portion of the financial instruments, fair value estimates 
are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk 
characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors.  

The Company has used management’s best estimate of fair value based on the above assumptions.  As 
such, the fair values presented may not be the amounts that could be realized in an immediate sale or 
settlement of the instrument. In addition, any income taxes or other expenses that would be incurred in an 
actual sale or settlement are not taken into consideration in the fair values presented.  
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash and Due from Banks, Interest-Earning Deposits with Banks and Federal Funds Sold 
The carrying amounts for cash and due from banks, interest-earning deposits with banks and federal funds 
sold approximate fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments. 

Certificates of Deposit with Banks  
The fair value of certificates of deposit with other banks is estimated based on discounting cash flows using 
the rates currently offered for instruments of similar remaining maturities. 

Investment Securities 
Fair value for investment securities equals quoted market price if such information is available.  If a quoted 
market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. 
 
Loans 
The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis.  The valuation of loans is based on 
an exit pricing notion.  The exit price notion uses a discounted cash flow technique to calculate the present 
value of expected future cash flows, and incorporates other factors, such as enhanced credit risk, illiquidity 
risk and market factors that sometimes exist in exit prices in dislocated markets.  The credit risk assumption 
is intended to approximate the fair value that a market participant would realize in a hypothetical orderly 
transaction. 

Accrued Interest 
The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable is considered to 
approximate fair value. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 
The carrying value of the FHLB stock approximates fair value based on the redemption provisions of the 
FHLB. 

Deposits 
The fair value of demand, savings, and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at the 
reporting date.  The fair value of time deposits is estimated by discounting expected cash flows using the 
rates currently offered for instruments of similar remaining maturities, including both brokered and 
wholesale funding offerings. 

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 
The fair value of these advances is based upon the discounted present value of expected cash flows using 
current rates at which borrowings of similar maturity could be obtained. 

Subordinated Debt 
The estimated fair value of the Company’s subordinated debt was derived using a discounted cash flow 
analysis based on the Company’s current incremental borrowing rate based on similar recent borrowing 
arrangements with similar terms by other banking institutions with similar asset base. 

Other Borrowings 
The carrying amount of the Company’s other borrowings approximates its fair value due to short-term 
nature of these liabilities. 

Derivatives 
The fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments is based on current market information from third 
parties that are active in this market and is based upon projected future interest rates and cash flows. 
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Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk 
With regard to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk, it is not practicable to estimate the fair value 
of future financing commitments. The fair value of such commitments is insignificant because the underlying 
committed interest rates approximate market rates. 

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments, none of which are 
held for trading purposes, are as follows as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:   

Financial Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 11,459,844    $ 11,459,844    $ 11,459,844    $ -                   $ -                   
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 5,376,937       5,376,937       5,376,937       -                   -                   
Federal funds sold 7,383,395       7,383,395       7,383,395       -                   -                   
Certificates of deposits with banks 5,145,000       5,145,000       5,145,000       -                   -                   
Investment securities available-for-sale 249,971,531  249,971,531  -                   249,971,531  -                   
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 650,849,891  647,889,685  -                   -                   647,889,685  
Accrued interest receivable 2,941,479       2,941,479       -                   2,941,479       -                   
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,715,800       2,715,800       -                   -                   2,715,800       

Financial Liabilities
Deposits 753,448,411  753,816,757  -                   753,816,757  -                   
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 46,500,000    46,489,919    -                   46,489,919    -                   
Subordinated debt 30,633,368    30,633,454    -                   30,633,454    -                   
Other borrowings 57,522,579    57,522,579    -                   57,522,579    -                   
Accrued interest payable 527,108          527,108          -                   527,108          -                   
Derivative instruments 109,178          109,178          -                   109,178          -                   

Financial Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 9,358,899       $ 9,358,899       $ 9,358,899       $ -                   $ -                   
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 4,312,158       4,312,158       4,312,158       -                   -                   
Federal funds sold 6,675,143       6,675,143       6,675,143       -                   -                   
Certificates of deposits with banks 5,880,000       5,880,000       5,880,000       -                   -                   
Investment securities avai lable-for-sale 164,039,845  164,039,845  -                   164,039,845  -                   
Loans, net of al lowance for loan losses 571,751,514  575,010,724  -                   -                   575,010,724  
Accrued interest receivable 1,981,902       1,981,902       -                   1,981,902       -                   
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,668,400       2,668,400       -                   -                   2,668,400       

Financial Liabi lities
Deposits 678,190,236  679,134,514  -                   679,134,514  -                   
Advances from the Federal  Home Loan Bank 47,000,000    46,919,381    -                   46,919,381    -                   
Subordinated debt 6,000,000       5,961,190       -                   5,961,190       -                   
Accrued interest payable 703,594          703,594          -                   703,594          -                   

Carrying Amount Total Level  1 Level 2

December 31, 2020
Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2

December 31, 2019

Total Level 3

Level 3
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The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy 
established under ASC 820-10, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.  A financial instrument’s categorization 
within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the financial 
instrument’s fair value measurement in its entirety.  There are three levels of inputs that may be used to 
measure fair value.  The three levels of inputs of the valuation hierarchy are defined below:  

Fair Value Hierarchy 
The Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the 
assets and liabilities are traded, and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.  These 
levels are: 

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and 
liabilities include certain debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange 
market. 

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable 
or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the 
assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liabilities include fixed income securities, 
mortgage-backed securities, and corporate bonds that are held in the Bank’s available-
for-sale portfolio and valued by a third-party pricing service, as well as certain impaired 
loans. 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant 
to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial 
instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow 
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination 
of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation. These 
methodologies may result in a significant portion of the fair value being derived from 
unobservable data. 
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Recurring Basis Measurements 
The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Company’s assets and liabilities 
accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. Assets and liabilities 
are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value 
measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their 
placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.   

Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis are as follows: 

Assets
Securities available-for-sale

U.S. agency securities $ -                    $ 6,706,131        $ -                    $ 6,706,131        
Mortgage-backed securities

GSE -                    125,858,487   -                    125,858,487   
Municipal bonds -                    111,282,118   -                    111,282,118   
Corporate bonds -                    6,124,795        -                    6,124,795        

Total $ -                    $ 249,971,531   $ -                    $ 249,971,531   

Liabilities
Derivative instruments

Interest rate swap $ -                    $ 109,178           $ -                    $ 109,178           

Total $ -                    $ 109,178           $ -                    $ 109,178           

Assets
Securities available-for-sale

U.S. agency securities $ -                    $ 18,395,329     $ -                    $ 18,395,329     
Mortgage-backed securities

GSE -                    97,408,631     -                    97,408,631     
Municipal bonds -                    47,233,175     -                    47,233,175     
Corporate bonds -                    1,002,710        -                    1,002,710        

Total $ -                    $ 164,039,845   $ -                    $ 164,039,845   

Level 1 Level  2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2019

 
The valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are 
as follows: 

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale 
Investment securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.  Fair value 
measurement is based upon quoted and money prices, if available.  If quoted prices are not available, fair 
values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such 
as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, prepayment assumptions 
and other factors such as credit loss assumptions.  Level 2 securities include U.S. agency securities, 
mortgage-backed securities, corporate, and municipal bonds. 

Derivative Instruments 
Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.  Their fair value is measured based 
on quotes provided by third party participants in this market.  Their quotes are based upon projection of 
future interest rates and cash flows.   

There were no changes during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 to the Company’s valuation 
techniques used to measure asset fair values on a recurring basis. 
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Nonrecurring Basis Measurements 
Certain other financial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, that is, the instruments 
are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain 
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).  

Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as follows: 

Assets
Impaired loans - PCI $ -                    $ -                    $ 471,583           $ 471,583           
Impaired loans -                    -                    734,557           734,557           
Other real estate owned -                    -                    117,500           117,500           

Total $ -                    $ -                    $ 1,323,640        $ 1,323,640        

Assets
Impaired loans - PCI $ -                    $ -                    $ 522,205           $ 522,205           

Total $ -                    $ -                    $ 522,205           $ 522,205           

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2019

 
The valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis 
are as follows: 

Impaired Loans 
The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan 
is considered impaired and an allowance for loan losses is established. Loans for which it is probable that 
payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan 
agreement are considered impaired. Once a loan is identified as individually impaired, management will 
measure impairment. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, including 
collateral value, market price and discounted cash flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance 
represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the recorded 
investments in such loans. As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the bulk of the impaired loans were 
evaluated using discounted cash flows.  Impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the 
fair value of collateral or where the loan has been partially charged off as a result of the assessment of 
impairment require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based 
on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the impaired loan as 
nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value 
of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the 
Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3. The fair value of impaired loans may also be 
estimated using the present value of expected future cash flows to be realized on the loan, which is also 
considered a Level 3 valuation. These fair value estimates are subject to fluctuations in assumptions about 
the amount and timing of expected cash flows as well as the choice of discount rate used in the present 
value calculation. 

At December 31, 2020, total impaired loans were $3,350,000, of which were adjusted in the current year to 
fair value and there were $2,705,000 of non-acquired impaired loans with specific reserves of $1,971,000.  
At December 31, 2020, PCI loans totaling $1,132,000 included $500,000 of loans with specific reserves of 
$28,000, resulting in a fair value of $472,000.  At December 31, 2019, total impaired loans were $607,000, 
of which none were adjusted in the current year to fair value and there were no non-acquired impaired loans 
with specific reserves.  At December 31, 2019, PCI loans totaling $1,879,000 included $533,000 of loans 
with specific reserves of $11,000, resulting in a fair value of $522,000. 
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Other Real Estate Owned 
Other real estate owned balances are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to real estate owned. 
Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is recorded initially at estimated fair value of the property less 
estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure. The initial recorded value may be subsequently reduced 
by additional valuation allowances, which are charged to earnings if the estimated fair value of the property 
less estimated selling costs declines below the initial recorded value. Fair value is based upon independent 
market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management’s estimation of the value of the collateral. 
When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, 
the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not 
available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised 
value and there is no observable market price, the Company records the foreclosed real estate asset as 
nonrecurring Level 3.  

For Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements 
were as follows:   

        Significant   Significant 
Level 3 Assets with Significant        Unobservable   Unobservable 
 Unobservable Inputs   Fair Value   Valuation Technique   Inputs   Input Value  
 
2020 
Impaired Loans  $ 734,557  Discounted cash flows (1)  PV of cash flows (1) 3.25% to 3.85% 
Impaired Loans - PCI $ 471,583  Discounted cash flows (1)  PD/LGD/PPM (2)                   19% 
Other Real Estate Owned $ 117,500  Discounted appraisals (1)  Appraisal adjustments (3) 6.0% to  7.0% 
 
 
2019 
Impaired Loans - PCI  $ 522,205  Discounted cash flows (1)  PD/LGD/PPM (2)                  18% 
      

(1) Fair value is generally based on appraisals of the underlying collateral but is also based on discounted cash 
flows for some loans. 

(2) PD = Probably of Default / LGD = Loss Given Default / PPM = Prepayment Speeds 

(3) Appraisals may be adjusted by management for customized discounting criteria, estimated sales costs, and 
proprietary qualitative adjustments. Some valuations maybe based on an offer to purchase the property itself 
less estimated sales costs. 

Impaired loans and real estate and repossessions acquired in settlement of loans classified as Level 3 are 
based on management’s judgment and estimation.  

16. Employee and Director Benefit Plans 

401(k) Retirement Plan 
The Company has a 401(k) retirement plan that covers all eligible employees.  The Company matches 
100% of employee contributions on the first 3% of each employee’s covered compensation and 50% of 
employee contributions on the next 2% of each employee’s covered compensation.  Matching contributions 
are funded when accrued.  Matching expenses totaled $323,000 and $314,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
The Company has supplemental executive retirement plans to provide benefits for one member of executive 
management. The liability was calculated by discounting the anticipated future cash flows in accordance 
with the plan for 2020 and 2019, resulting in an accrued liability for this obligation totaling $1.3 million and 
$771,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
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Omnibus Incentive Plan 
During 2012 the Company adopted, with shareholder approval, an Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "Plan").  
The Plan allows for grants in the form of stock options, restricted stock and performance units.  Employees 
and Directors are both eligible to receive grants under the Plan.  As of December 31, 2019, there were 
131,575 shares available for grant.  During 2020, stock options granted under the Plan totaled 7,000, and 
restricted stock awarded under the Plan totaled 48,000, in addition there were 912 shares that were 
forfeited, resulting in 77,487 shares available for grant as of December 31, 2020.  

Restricted Stock Awards 
Restricted stock awards are subject to a vesting schedule and the risk of forfeiture if conditions stated in 
the award agreement are not satisfied at the end of a restriction period. During the restriction period, 
restricted stock is unvested and held by the Company.  If the conditions stated in the award agreement are 
satisfied at the end of the restriction period, the restricted stock will become vested and the book entry 
shares evidencing the stock will be delivered to the account of the employee or director with the Company’s 
stock transfer agent. 

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock grants as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 
2019 is as follows:  

Total Restricted 
Stock Vested Non-Vested

December 31, 2018 108,755             58,702                50,053                
Awarded 36,950                -                      36,950                
Vested -                      15,532                (15,532)              
Forfeited (206)                    -                      (206)                    

December 31, 2019 145,499             74,234                71,265                
Awarded 48,000                -                      48,000                
Vested -                      22,308                (22,308)              
Forfeited -                      -                      -                      

December 31, 2020 193,499             96,542                96,957                

 

Stock based compensation expense resulting from restricted stock awards was $359,000 and $288,000 for 
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
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Stock Options 
Stock options may be issued as incentive stock options or as nonqualified stock options. The term of the 
option will be established at the time it is granted but shall not exceed ten years. Vesting will also be 
established at the time the option is granted.  The exercise price may not be less than the fair market value 
of a share of common stock on the date the option is granted. 

A summary of the Company’s stock options as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 is as follows: 

Number 
Outstanding

December 31, 2019 89,521             $ 10.13                $ 413,418           

Options granted 7,000                8.91                  
Options expired -                    -                    
Options exercised (17,745)            8.25                  
Options forfeited (912)                  15.53                

December 31, 2020 77,864             $ 10.39                $ 176,460           

Options exercisable at
December 31, 2020 58,354             $ 9.57                  $ 156,389           

Outstanding Options

Aggregate       
Intrinsic Value

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

 
 
The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2020: 

Number 
Outstanding

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractional 

Life (Years)
Number 

Exercisable
December 31, 2020

Exercise Price
$8.00 - $12.50 57,450             3.82                  49,562             $ 8.58                  
$12.51 - $16.50 20,414             7.46                  8,792                15.14                

77,864             4.77                  58,354             $ 9.57                  

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

Outstanding Options Options Exercisable

 
 
There were 7,000 options granted during the year ended December 31, 2020.  The weighted average fair 
value of the options granted in 2020 was $1.63 and was determined as of the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, assuming the following weighted average assumptions: a risk-free interest 
rate of 0.53%, a dividend yield of 2.24%, volatility of 25.39%, and an expected life of seven years.  

There were 8,500 options granted during the year ended December 31, 2019.  The weighted average fair 
value of the options granted in 2019 was $4.82 and was determined as of the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, assuming the following weighted average assumptions: a risk-free interest 
rate of 2.39%, a dividend yield of 1.14%, volatility of 22.33%, and an expected life of eight years. 

There were 17,745 stock options exercised in 2020 and no stock options exercised during 2019.    
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A summary of the status of the Company’s non-vested stock options as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
and changes during the year then ended is presented below: 

Shares

December 31, 2018
Non-vested options 19,535             $ 4.30                  

Granted 8,500                4.82                  
Vested (6,078)              3.78                  
Forfeited (1,569)              4.43                  

December 31, 2019
Non-vested options 20,388             4.67                  

Granted 7,000                1.63                  
Vested (6,966)              4.29                  
Forfeited (912)                  5.15                  

December 31, 2020 19,510             $ 3.69                  

Weighted Average            
Grant Date              
Fair Value

 
 
The total fair value of shares that contractually vested during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
is $30,000 and $23,000, respectively. 

Employment Contracts 
The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its executive officers to ensure a 
stable and competent management base.  The agreements provide for benefits as enumerated in the 
contracts and cannot be terminated by the Board of Directors, except for cause, without prejudicing the 
officers’ rights to receive certain vested rights, including compensation.  In the event of a change in control 
of the Company and in certain other events, as defined in the agreements, the Company or any successor 
to the Company will be bound to the terms of the contracts. 

17. Other Noninterest Expense 

The major components of other noninterest expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as follows: 

Professional Services $ 599,514             $ 477,301             
Office Supplies 234,393             197,723             
Postage and courier 147,071             145,781             
Telephone 516,205             433,924             
FDIC premiums and assessments 383,022             167,257             
Net (gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned -                      67,354                
Loan collection fees 231,257             178,767             
Debit card charge-offs 18,340                25,753                
Core deposit intangible amortization 548,911             707,633             
Other 939,778             880,974             

Total $ 3,618,490          $ 3,282,466          

2020 2019
For the Year Ended December 31,

 

The FDIC premiums and assessments shown above is net of $165,000 of Small Bank Credits received 
during 2019.  



UB Bancorp 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

 

51 

18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss) included the following at December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

Unrealized gains on investment securities available-for-sale:
Accumulated other comprehensive gain $ 7,128,517 $ 1,160,322          
Deferred tax impact (1,639,559)         (266,874)            

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (109,178) -                      
Deferred tax impact 22,927                -                      

Accumulated other comprehensive gain, net of tax $ 5,402,707          $ 893,448             

Accumulated other comprehensive gain/(loss), beginning $ 893,448             $ (1,314,389)         
Unrealized gains on investment securities available-for-sale:

Other comprehensive gain before reclassifications,
net of tax 4,792,268          2,585,843          

Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive
(gain), net of tax (196,758)            (378,006)            

Unrealized (loss) on cash flow hedges:
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications,

net of tax (86,251)              -                      

Net current period other comprehensive gain 4,509,259          2,207,837          

Accumulated other comprehensive gain, ending $ 5,402,707          $ 893,448             

2020 2019

As of December 31,
2020 2019

For the Year Ended December 31,
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19. Condensed Parent Company Information 

UB Bancorp was formed in May of 2020, as a result there is only a single year of financial data presented.  
Condensed financial data for UB Bancorp (parent company only) follows:  
 
UB Bancorp - Parent Company Only
Condensed Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 16,470,036        
Other assets -                      
Investment in Bank subsidiary 102,435,728     

TOTAL ASSETS $ 118,905,764     

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:
Subordinated debt $ 24,633,368        
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 279,495             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,912,864        

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock 71,087,685        
Retained earnings 17,502,508        
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5,402,707          

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 93,992,900        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 118,905,764     

2020

 
 

UB Bancorp - Parent Company Only
Condensed Statement of Operations
For the Period May 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020

Dividend from Bank subsidiary $ 593,396             
Equity in undistributed earnings of Bank subsidiary, net of dividends 3,173,150          
Interest expense (758,727)            
All other noninterest income and expenses 74,941                

NET INCOME $ 3,082,760          

2020
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UB Bancorp - Parent Company Only
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period of May 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 3,082,760        

Adjustments to reconcile net income to 
net cash provided by operating activities:

Equity in earnings of subsidiary (3,766,546)      
Capital transfer to subsidiary (7,250,000)      
Issuance cost of subordinated debt (389,248)          
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable 312,500           
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities (10,388)            

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (8,020,922)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Upstream dividends received from subsidiary 593,396           

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 593,396           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from subordinated debt 25,000,000     
Issuance of common stock 73,750             
Cash dividends paid (1,176,188)      

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 23,897,562     

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16,470,036     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING -                    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING $ 16,470,036     

2020
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Organization Chart

UB Bancorp
No LEI

1011 Red Banks Road, Greenville, NC  27858
Incorporated in NC

Bank Holding Company for Union Bank

Union Bank
No LEI

1011 Red Banks Road, Greenville, NC  27858
Incorporated in NC

Wholly Owned Subsidiary of UB Bancorp

Form FR Y-6

UB Bancorp
Greenville, NC

For Year Ending December 31, 2020

100% Owner



Results: A list of branches for your holding company: UB BANCORP (5471801) of GREENVILLE, NC.
The data are as of 12/31/2020. Data reflects information that was received and processed through  01/05/2021.

Reconciliation and Verification Steps
1. In the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below
2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column

Actions
OK: If the branch information is correct, enter 'OK'  in the Data Action column.
Change: If the branch information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change'  in the Data Action column and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date column.
Close: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Close'  in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column.
Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository institution, enter 'Delete'  in the Data Action column.
Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add'  in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column.

If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper.

Submission Procedure
When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact.  See the detailed instructions on this site for more information.
If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e-mail.

Note:
To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, Close, Delete, or Add.
The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://y10online.federalreserve.gov.

* FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only.  Verification of these values is not required.

Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County Country FDIC UNINUM* Office Number* Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* Comments
OK Full Service (Head Office) 2744782 UNION BANK                                                                                                              1011 RED BANKS ROAD                                                                                 GREENVILLE               NC 27858     PITT                                    UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
Closed 1/31/2020 Full Service 4991003 CARY BRANCH                                                                                                             1405 BRADFORD VIEW DRIVE                                                                            CARY                     NC 27512     WAKE                                    UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 3725836 CREEDMOOR BRANCH                                                                                                        405 NORTH MAIN STREET                                                                               CREEDMOOR                NC 27522     GRANVILLE                               UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 3678567 GOLDSBORO BRANCH                                                                                                        2406 E. ASH STREET                                                                                  GOLDSBORO                NC 27534     WAYNE                                   UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 4275338 HENDERSON BRANCH                                                                                                        1203 DABNEY DRIVE                                                                                   HENDERSON                NC 27536     VANCE                                   UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 3678512 JACKSONVILLE BRANCH                                                                                                     118 WESTERN BLVD                                                                                    JACKSONVILLE             NC 28546     ONSLOW                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 3678530 KINSTON BRANCH                                                                                                          1101 WEST VERNON AVENUE                                                                             KINSTON                  NC 28501     LENOIR                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 3678503 LA GRANGE BRANCH                                                                                                        119 W RAILROAD STREET                                                                               LA GRANGE                NC 28551     LENOIR                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 4275310 LOUISBURG BRANCH                                                                                                        512 SOUTH BICKETT BOULEVARD                                                                         LOUISBURG                NC 27549     FRANKLIN                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 5088861 NEW BERN BRANCH                                                                                                         531 MCCARTHY BLVD                                                                                   NEW BERN                 NC 28562     CRAVEN                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 3429059 OXFORD BRANCH                                                                                                           108 COLLEGE STREET                                                                                  OXFORD                   NC 27565     GRANVILLE                               UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 5084733 RALEIGH BRANCH                                                                                                          701 MUTUAL COURT                                                                                    RALEIGH                  NC 27615     WAKE                                    UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 4264378 ROXBORO BRANCH                                                                                                          1750 DURHAM ROAD                                                                                    ROXBORO                  NC 27573     PERSON                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Limited Service 5088870 WILMINGTON BRANCH                                                                                                       1427 MILITARY CUTOFF ROAD, SUITE 210                                                                WILMINGTON               NC 28403     NEW HANOVER                             UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782
OK Full Service 4275329 YOUNGSVILLE BRANCH                                                                                                      978 US HIGHWAY 1                                                                                    YOUNGSVILLE              NC 27596     FRANKLIN                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required UNION BANK                                                                                                              2744782



Report Item: 3
Security Holders

(1) (a) (1) (b) (1) (c) (2) (a) (2) (b) (2) (c)

Name, City, State, Country
Country of Citizenship or 
Incorporation

Number & Percentage of Each 
Class of Voting Securities Name, City, State, Country

Country of Citizenship or 
Incorporation

Number & Percentage of Each 
Class of Voting Securities

None None

Form FR Y-6

UB Bancorp
Greenville, NC

For Year Ending December 31, 2020



Report Item: 4
Insiders

(1) (2) (3) (a) (3) (b) (3) (c) (4) (a) (4) (b) (4) (c)

 Name, City, State, Country

Principal Occupation if 
other than with Holding 

Company
Title & Position with 

Holding Company
Title & Position with 

Subsidiaries Title & Position with Other Businesses

Percentage of Voting 
Shares in Holding 

Company
Percentage of Voting 
Shares in Subsidiaries

List Names of Other Companies if 25% or 
More of Voting Securities are Held

Dr. Raymond C. Ball, Jr., Atlantic Beach, NC, USA Orthodontist Director Director, Union Bank Partner, Coastal Carolina Orthodontics 0.93% None The Rainbow Lodge LLC - 50%
Joseph E. Blizzard, Kinston, NC USA Building Supplies Director Director, Union Bank President & Owner, Contract Flooring & Design 0.44% None Contract Flooring & Design - 100%

Robert Lee Burrows, Jr., Atlanta, GA, USA Investment Banking Director & Chairman
Director & Chairman, Union 

Bank Vice Chairman of Investment Banking of Performance Trust Capital Partners 1.79% None N/A
Lawrence Davenport, Greenville, NC, USA N/A Director Director, Union Bank N/A 0.29% None N/A

James T. Hill, Jr., Kinston, NC, USA N/A Director Director, Union Bank N/A 1.15% None N/A

C. Dwight Howard, Kinston, NC, USA Agriculture Director & Vice Chairman Director, Union Bank

President & Owner, Carolina Greenhouses, Carolina Soil Co., Howard 
Development, Inc., East Coast Modules, Inc., How Corp., LLC, Eastern 

Warehouses, LLC 3.86% None

 Carolina Greenhouses - 100%         Carolina 
Soil Co. - 100%                     Howard 

Development, Inc. - 100%         East Coast 
Modules, Inc. - 100%             How Corp., LLC - 
100%                       Eastern Warehouses, LLC - 

100%

V. Robert Jones, Greenville, NC, USA N/A Director & CEO
Director, President & CEO, 

Union Bank N/A 0.72% None N/A

Cameron McRae, Kinston, NC, USA Restaurants Director Director, Union Bank President & Owner, Tands, Inc., McRae & Assoc., Inc. 1.91% None
Tands, Inc. - 100%                                  McRae 

& Assoc., Inc. - 100%
Chandler T. Currin, Jr., Oxford, NC, USA N/A Director Director, Union Bank N/A 0.47% None N/A

F. Wills Hancock, IV, Oxford, NC, USA Real Estate Director Director, Union Bank Owner / Broker, Century 21 Hancock Properties, Inc. 1.51% None Century 21 Hancock Properties, Inc.-100%

Crawford A. Knott, Oxford, NC, USA Accountant
Director & Chairman of 
Executive Committee Director, Union Bank Partner, Holden Moss Knott Clark & Copley, P. A. 0.51% None

Holden Moss Knott Clark & Copley, P. A. - 
37.5%

Conrad B. Sturges, III, Louisburg, NC, USA Attorney Director Director, Union Bank Partner, Davis, Sturges & Tomlinson, PLLC 0.23% None

Davis, Sturges & Tomlinson, PLLC - 45%, 
R&B Restaurant Group - 40%,        Madison 

Land Company, LLC - 100%
T. Gray Yancey, Oxford, NC, USA Real Estate Director Director, Union Bank Vice President, Yancey Properties, Inc. 0.31% None N/A

Stephen K. Zaytoun, Raleigh, NC, USA Insurance Director Director, Union Bank Owner, Zaytoun & Associates, Inc. 0.10% None Zaytoun & Associates, Inc. - 100%

Doyle M. Thigpen, Snow Hill, NC, USA N/A Corporate Secretary
Sr. Vice President & Corporate 

Secretary, Union Bank N/A 0.39% None N/A

Scott C. McLean, Greenville, NC, USA N/A Chief Financial Officer
Exec. Vice President & Chief 
Financial Officer, Union Bank N/A 0.02% None N/A

Form FR Y-6

UB Bancorp
Greenville, NC

For Year Ending December 31, 2020
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